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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquitlers pursuant to Iltem 405 of Regulation S-K (82®% of this chapter) is not contained herein, and
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(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa
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State the aggregate market value of the votingnamevoting common equity held by non-affiliates qarted by reference to the price at which the common
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fiscal quarter. The aggregate market value otttramon equity held by noaffiliates as of June 30, 2012 was $13,279,31inaisg) a closing price of $0.'
and outstanding shares held by non-affiliates ¢53(3,317.
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PART |

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHisgficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believés‘anticipates,” “intends,
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fomvkroking statements within the meaning of the Pavaecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forwarddooking statements involve known and unknown risiscertainties, and other factors that may caugeactual result
performance, or achievements to be materially @iffe from any future results, performance, or adhieents expressed or implied by <
forward{ooking statements. Such factors include, amomhgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our maingnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation, our ability to mairmafavorable supplier arrangements and relatiorsstopr ability to quickly increase capacit
response to an increase in demand, our abilitg¢ess the market, our ability to maintain or lowesduction costs, our ability to continue
finance research and development as well as opesatand expansion of production, the increasedesteof larger market playe
specifically Becton Dickinson and Company (“BDi), providing devices to the safety market, and ofaetors referenced in Item 1A. R
Factors. Given these uncertainties, undue relighoeld not be placed on forward-looking statements

Iltem 1. Business.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General Development of Business

On May 9, 1994, our company was incorporated inaSeto design, develop, manufacture, and marketvative patented safe
medical products for the healthcare industry.

Our goal is to become a leading provider of safeggical products.

Advantages of our VanishPoifit safety products include protection from needlestigkries, prevention of cross contamina
through reuse, and reduction of disposal and aksociated costs. Federal regulation now reqthiesise of safe needle devices. We
developed and are developing new safety medicalymts, some of which do not utilize our patentéchation technology.

Our VanishPoin® safety products (consisting of lmhberculin, insulin, and allergy antigen VanishR&i syringes; 0.5mL, 2ml|
3mL, 5mL, and 10mL VanishPoirt  syringes; the VhRisint® blood collection tube holder; VanishPofhautodisable syringe; t
VanishPoint® |V safety catheter; and the VanishP®iBlood Collection Set) utilize a unique friction gnrmechanism patented by Thome
Shaw, our Founder, President, and Chief Executifficéd. VanishPoint® safety needle products are designed specificallpreven
needlestick injuries and to prevent reuse. Thdidm ring mechanism permits the automated retactif the needle into the barrel of
syringe, directly from the patient, after delivarfythe medication is completed. The VanishP@8irtilood collection tube holder utilizes
same mechanism to retract the needle after blosdé&an drawn from the patient. Closure of an h&#d@nd cap of the blood collection t
holder causes the needle to retract directly froenpatient into the closed blood collection tub&lan The IV safety catheter also oper
with a friction ring mechanism whereby the needleétracted after insertion of the catheter inte gatient. The VanishPoift Blood
Collection Set utilizes a patented mechanism t@acéthe needle directly from the patient and clah®tubing to reduce exposure to blo
We also have a Patient S&fesyringe which is uniquely designed to reduce ts& df bloodstream infections resulting from cathétek
contamination.

Our products have been and continue to be distibuaationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been block
from access to the market by exclusive marketiraciizes engaged in by Becton, Dickinson and Comg&dBR”) which dominates o
market. We initiated a lawsuit in 2007 against BLhe suit was for patent infringement, antitrustqbices, and false advertising. The c
severed the patent claims from the other claimdipgnresolution of the patent dispute. The Fed@&iatuit determined that B3’ 1mL
Integra syringe violated our patents but that 8BfnL Integra did not infringe our patents. Inuky 2013, our petition to the U.S. Suprt
Court for certiorari was denied. The trial for {ertion of the suit regarding antitrust and otblaims is currently anticipated to be sched
in the summer of 2013.
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In 2011, we purchased four new molding machinescilgrovide us with the capability to manufacturk méce parts for ol
VanishPoint® syringes at our plant in Little EIm. These moldimgchines were in service in 2012, which helpedicedour unit cost |
manufacture. We continue to focus on methods gfaging our manufacturing capability and efficiemeyrder to reduce costs.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the matketgh our sales efforts, our innovative techgglointroduction of ne
products, and, when necessary, litigation.

While our sales and expenses have not fluctuatgdfisiantly over the last three years, our loss geare for 2012 was materic
different than 2011 and 2010 predominantly becafisiee litigation settlements received in 2011 20d0, as described herein.

Effective July 12, 2010, we entered into a settiehagreement with Abbott Laboratories (“Abbott")daHospira, Inc. (“Hospirg:
In connection with this settlement agreement, wantgd Hospira an exclusive ogear option to negotiate a licensing agreementéotair
uses of our Patient Safesyringe. This option expired unexercised in JWE2 We have received the total $8 million optgayment. A
part of the settlement, in the third quarter of @0Hospira paid us $6 million and forgave a margfiee of $1.4 million. The settlement
reduced by an outstanding invoice due to us fodghdusand.

On September 12, 2011, we commenced the 2011 Egeh@iffer and also engaged in private purchases thitbe Preferre
Stockholders. As of December 31, 2011, PreferredtkBolders had tendered a total of 1,277,464 shafePreferred Stock. A total
$1,357,275 was paid and 1,277,464 shares of ConBtmrk were issued as consideration to these Peef&@tockholders. These Prefel
Stockholders agreed to waive all unpaid dividendarrears associated with their tendered Prefedtedk, which resulted in a waiver ¢
total of $3,592,659 in unpaid dividends in arrears.

On July 10, 2012, the Company authorized a CommtookSepurchase plan structured to comply with Rdl@éb5-1 and 1068
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Unldemplan, the Company purchased 67,102 shares©bitsmon Stock in 2012.

Section 4191 of the Internal Revenue Code, endntdtle Health Care and Education Reconciliation @010 in conjunction wit
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Actyjites for an excise tax of 2.3% on medical devimeginning in 2013. At the present ti
the excise tax is applicable to domestic salesuopooducts, except those sold to exempt orgawiaati The majority of our sales are dome
and not in the retail market. The tax is imposadsales, not profits. We estimate the impact of t#ix to be in excess of one million dol
in 2013. There is no assurance this tax can bsegaalong to our customersThrough March 14, 2013, we have paid $157 thousa
Medical Device Excise Taxes.

Financial Information

Please see the financial statementtém 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat#or information about our revenu
profits, and losses for the last three years atad éssets for the last two years.

Principal Products

Our products with Notice of Substantial Equivaletm¢he U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDAghd which are currently sc
include the 1mL tuberculin; insulin; allergy antig€anishPoin® syringes; 3mL, 5mL, and 10mL VanisinP® syringes; the VanishPoifit
blood collection tube holder; the VanishPdint d&fety catheter; small diameter tube adapter; #tieft Safe® syringe; the Patient S&fe
Luer Cap; and the VanishPoitit Blood Collection. Sate are also selling VanishPoihtautodisable syringes in the international mark
addition to our other products.

In the August 2007 issue bfealth Devices , ECRI listed the VanishPoifftsyringe as one of two syringes with the highestiibe
rating.
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Syringe sales comprised 97.3%; 97.2%, and 99.1%evahues in 2010, 2011, and 2012, respectively.

Principal Markets

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanddes primarily in the U.S. (with 24.6% of revesua 2012 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not limite, acute care hospitals, alternate care faslitiloctorsbffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetehansinistration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons.

The need to change to safety devices is due taiskethat is carried with each needlestick injurhigh includes the potent
transmission of over 20 bloodborne pathogens, diafuthe human immunodeficiency virus (“HIWthich causes AIDS), hepatitis B, ¢
hepatitis C. Because of the occupational and pui#ialth hazards posed by conventional disposatieges, public health policy make
domestic organizations, and government agencies hagn involved in the effort to get more effectbadety needle products to healthi
workers. Federal legislation was signed into lamNovember 6, 2000, by former President Willianfeksbn Clinton. This legislation, whi
became effective for most states on April 12, 20y requires safety needle products be used &vaist majority of procedures. Howe'
even with this requirement, some hospitals areautiglg to follow the law intended to protect heedtre workers.

Methods of Marketing and Distribution

Under the current supply chain system in the UcBteacare market, the vast majority of decisiofatireg to the contracting for a
purchasing of medical supplies are made by theesgmtatives of group purchasing organizations (“SP@nd purchasing representati
rather than the endsers of the product (nurses, doctors, and tepimgonnel). The GPOs and large manufacturers efiesr into contrac
which can prohibit or limit entry in the marketpéaby competitors.

We distribute our products throughout the U.S. @sderritories through general line and speciatstributors. We also utili
international distributors. We have developed tional direct marketing network in order to market products to health care customers
their purchaser representatives. Our marketersencaktact with all of the departments that afféet tlecisiomnaking process for safe
products, including the purchasing agents. Thdlyoteacute care and alternate care sites and spiesdtly with the decisiomakers of thes
facilities. We employ trained clinicians, includimurses and/or medical technologists that edulsatdthcare providers and healthe
workers on the use of safety devices througlsita-<clinical training, exhibits at related tradesis, and publications of relevant article:
trade journals and magazines. These employeesdpralinical support to customers. In additionmarketing our products, the netw
demonstrates the safety and cost effectivenessedfanishPoin? automated retraction products starners.

In the needle and syringe market, the market sleaer, BD, has utilized, among other things, @i which have restricted
entry of VanishPoin® syringes into the markethétproducts manufactured by us that are beingedemiarket access as a result of 8D’
anti-competitive actions include the IV safety edénrs and Patient Sdfe syringes.

We have numerous agreements with organizationthéodistribution of our products in foreign marketa Canada, the provinces
Alberta, Manitoba, Ontario, and Saskatchewan hassed laws or regulations regarding healthcare evavfety and the use of safe ne
products. In Europe, the European Council adoptdalective requiring the use of safe needle prtducEU countries to prevent needles
injuries. The deadline for implementation is cathe May 2013. Brazil is the only country in Lathmerica that has initiated a regulat
requiring the use of safe needle products to pteveedlestick injuries. The Australian states efiANSouth Wales, Queensland, and Vict
have guidelines or directives regarding the praweraf needlestick injuries.

Key components of our strategy to increase our eiahkare are to: (a) defeat monopolistic practibesugh litigation; (b) focus ¢
methods of upgrading our manufacturing capabilitd afficiency in order to enable us to reduce ca@sid improve profit margin
(c) continue marketing emphasis in the U.S.; (dijticwe to add Veterans Administration facilitiegalth departments, emergency mec
services, federal prisons, lotgrmn care, and home healthcare facilities as custain{e) educate healthcare providers, insurerstHoare
workers,
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government agencies, government officials, andyéreeral public on the reduction of risk and the edfectiveness afforded by our produ
(f) supply product through GPOs and Integrated \i2e}i Networks where possible; (g) consider possidnl for future licensing agreeme
and joint venture agreements for the manufactucedistribution of safety products in the U.S. amoad; (h) introduce new products; .
(i) increase international sales.

Status of Publicly Announced New Products

We have applied for patent protection and are éngiocess of developing additional safety medicatipcts which have yet to
announced.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We purchase most of our product components fromlesisuppliers, including needle adhesives and pakcgamaterials. There ¢
multiple sources of these materials. We own thédmthat are used to manufacture the plastic commtsnof our products in the U.S. (
current suppliers include Magor Mold, Inc., ChanRgme Alliance, PolyOne Corporation, Sterigenarsd Kovacmed.

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and ProprietartRigh

We and Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder and CEO, ent#ed Technology License Agreement dated effecéis of the 23rd day
June 1995 (the “Technology License Agreement”), nebhg Mr. Shaw granted us “.a worldwide exclusive license and right under
‘Licensed Patents’ and ‘Information’, to manufaetumarket, sell and distribute ‘Licensed Produetst! ‘Improvementsithout right tc
sublicense and subject to such nonexclusive rightsay be possessed by the Federal GovernmentlLicensed Patents’, ‘Information’
‘Licensed Products’, and ‘Improvementy’e all defined extensively in the Technology Leemgreement. We may enter into sublicer
arrangements with Mr. Shaw’s written approval ¢ thrms and conditions of the licensing agreem@&ie ‘Licensed Productshclude al
retractable syringes and retractable fluid samptiagices and components thereof, assembled orembated, which comprise an invent
described in ‘Licensed Patents’, and improvememsetto including any and all ‘Producighich employ the inventive concept disclose
claimed in the ‘Licensed PatentsVe and Mr. Shaw entered into the First Amendmenfeachnology Agreement July 3, 2008, whereb
amended the Technology License Agreement in oalerdude certain additional patent applicatiordd{@ssing norsyringe patents) own
by Mr. Shaw to the definition of “Patent Propertiess set forth in the Technology License Agreementhsd such additional pate
applications would be covered by the license gdhbteMr. Shaw to us.

In exchange for the Technology License Agreemeatnegotiated a licensing fee and agreed to pay eoy&ty on gross sales af
returns. The license terminates upon expiratiorthef last licensed patents unless sooner terminabei@r certain circumstances. °
licensing fees have been paid in accordance withagreement with the exception of $1,500,000 &sfevhich were waived in 2002 ¢
$1,000,000 in fees which were waived in 2009.

The Technology License Agreement was further ametiadeof September 7, 2012 to clarify and set ftréhcalculation and amot
of the royalty due to Mr. Shaw, including in theeatthat we have sublicensed our products.

We have the right and obligation to obtain protattdf the inventions, including prosecution of patproperties. The licen
unilaterally changes to a nonexclusive licensénandvent of a hostile takeover. Also, if Mr. Shawoluntarily loses control of the Compa
the license becomes a nonexclusive license arghtta information.

We seek foreign patent protection through the Ra@@operation Treaty and have filed applicationsrémional and national patt
protection in selected countries where we beliawepooducts can be utilized most.

We hold numerous U.S. patents related to our autmmeetraction technology, including patents for ddfety catheters, blo
collection sets, syringes, dental syringes, anddlcollection tube holders. In addition, we hawveltiple applications for patents currer
pending. The initial revolutionary spring actigmiage patents will
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expire beginning in May 2015. However, a significpatent will not expire until August 2016. Wevbaalso registered the following tre
names and trademarks: VanishPdint , Patient SaféanishPoint® logos, RT with a circle mark, the Spiral Logo usedackaging ot
products, and the color coded spots on the endsio¥anishPoinf® syringes. We also have trademaskeption for the phraseThe Nev
Standard for Safety.”

We are involved in patent litigation detailedliem 3. Legal Proceedings We have decided, on the advice of patent counsélkc
purchase patent insurance because it would rempaippropriate disclosure of information that isremtly proprietary and confidential.

Seasonality
Historically, unit sales have increased in theelattart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season.

Working Capital Practices

Cash and cash equivalents include unrestrictedaadlnvestments with original maturities of threenths or less.

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custont@us.allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that ardtfiduof collection are included in t
allowance. This provision is reviewed to determiine adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accaurtrade receivables are chargec
when there is certainty as to their being uncalliéet Trade receivables are considered delinquéngn payment has not been made w
contract terms.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragrith cost being determined using actual averagt. The Company compa
the average cost to the market price and recoadfother value. Management considers such fac®theaamount of inventory on hand
in the distribution channel, estimated time to selth inventory, the shelf life of inventory, angrrent market conditions when determir
excess or obsolete inventories. A reserve is ksitalol for any excess or obsolete inventories ey thay be written off.

Receivables are established for federal and stxestwhere we have determined we are entitledriefumd for overpayments
estimated taxes or loss carrybacks.

Accounts payable and other shtetm liabilities include amounts that we believe lwave an obligation for at the end of year. T
included charges for goods or services receive®Oih2 but not billed to us at the end of the yedaralso included estimates of poten
liabilities such as rebates and other fees.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providémt a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artied the distributors facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipct We will not accept returned goods withoueturned goods authorization numt
We may refund the customer’s money or replace tbhduyzt.

Our domestic return policy also generally provitiest a customer may return product that is ovekstdc Overstocking returns
limited to two times in each 12 month period upléb of distributors total purchase of products for the prior 12 mgmthiod upon th
following terms: i) an “overstocked” product is th@ortion of distributor’s inventory of the produshich exceeds distribut@’sales volun
for the product during the preceding four monthjsdistributor must not have taken delivery of fi®@duct which is overstocked during
preceding four months; iii) overstocked producthey distributor in excess of 12 months from theeds# original invoice will not be eligib
for return; iv) the product must have an expiratdate of at least 24 months from the date of retuyrthe overstocked product must
returned to us in our saleable case cartons whiehigopened and untampered, with no broken tayed seals; vi) distributor will be gran
a credit which may be used only to purchase othadycts from us, the credit to be in the amourthefinvoice price of the returned proc
less a 10% restocking fee which will be assessathapdistributor's subsequent purchase of prodaitdistributor must

5
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obtain an authorization code from our distributé@partment and affix the code to the returned prpdund viii) distributor shall bear the ¢
of shipping the returned products to us. All pratdoverstocks and returns are subject to inspeeatimmhacceptance by us.

Our international contracts generally do not previor any returns.

Dependence on Major Customers

Three customers accounted for an aggregate of 46f68ar revenue in 2012. We have numerous othstoowers and distributc
that sell our products in the U.S. and internatigna

Backlog Orders

Order backlog is not material to our business inagdmas orders for our products generally are reckand filled on a current ba:
except for items temporarily out of stock.

Government Funding of Research and Right to License

Thomas J. Shaw received grants from the federatmavent for his initial 1991 version of a safetyisge, which may give tt
federal government the right to allow others to afaoture that syringe. However, we believe theggoment has no right to allow other:
manufacture the current version of the VanishPdiayringe.

Government Approval and Government Regulations

For all products manufactured for sale in the ddimemarket we have given notice of intent to maricethe FDA and the devic
were shown to be substantially equivalent to thealipate devices for the stated intended use.

For all products manufactured for sale in the fgmeinarket, we hold a certificate of Quality Systesmpliance with ISO 13485. V
also have approval to label products for sale EBtoopean Union countries with a CE Mark. We wdhtinue to comply with applicak
regulations of all countries in which our produate registered for sale.

Competitive Conditions

Our products are sold to and used by healthcanad@s primarily in the U.S. (with 24.6% of revesua 2012 generated from se
outside the U.S.) which include, but are not limlite, acute care hospitals, alternate care fagslitiloctorsbffices, clinics, emergency cente
surgical centers, convalescent hospitals, Vetehansinistration facilities, military organizationpublic health facilities, and prisons.

We compete primarily on the basis of product penfance and quality. We believe our competitive atages include, but are |
limited to, our leadership in quality and innovati®e believe our products continue to be the rafisttive safety devices in todaymarket
Our syringe products include passive safety adtimarequire less disposal space, and are actiwak@lé in the patient, effectively reduci
exposure to the contaminated needle. Our pricaipielis competitive or even lower than the comjeti once all the costs incurred dur
the life cycle of a syringe are considered. Sufehdicle costs include disposal costs, testingtegmtment costs for needlestick injuries,
treatment for contracted ilinesses through neeadlestjuries.

Major domestic competitors include BD and Covidigd. (“Covidien”). Terumo Medical Corp. (“Terumqg”gmiths Medical, and
Braun are additional competitors with smaller mastere.

Founded in 1897, BD is headquartered in New Jer&fy's safetyengineered device sales accounted for approximat% o
BD’s total 2012 sales. BD’s classification of ggfengineered devices include the SafetyLok™ syrinvg@ich features a tubular plas
sheath that must be manually slid over the neeftbe moval from the patient, and the SafetyGlidaypodermic needle which utilize:
manually activated hinged lever to cover the neéglafter removal from the patient. BD markets BafetyGlide™ blood collection set t
has a
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manually activated cover designed to extend overrtbedle after use. The BD Eclipse™ safety blamltection needle and hypoderr
needle is also designed to manually cover the eeaftiér removal from the patient. BD manufactahesintegra™ 3mL retracting needle
syringe product, as well as a spring activatedidimig Vacutaine® blood collection tube holder apdirsy activated retracting Vacutairer
blood collection set. BD’s “Vacutain€r " brand naiis commonly used as industry jargon to refedaod collection products in general.

Covidien offers the Monojeét safety syringe, which, like the BD SafetyLok™, rega the use of two hands to manually exten:
tubular plastic shield to cover the needle aftenaeal from the patient. Covidien also markets khagellan™ needle, similar to BB’
SafetyGlide™ needle, which has a manually activaiaded lever to cover the needle tip after remdnaah the patient.

Due to the post-removal activation, BD’s and Cosith products result in exposure to the contaminatsdile. In addition, bo
BD’s and Covidien's safety needle devices allowrfeedle removal and potential syringe reuse.

In contrast, VanishPoirft syringes can be used without significant changésj@etion technique. The automated needle retmadt
activated when the plunger handle is fully deprésseconjunction with the delivery of the completedication dose, while the needle is
in the patient. This preemoval activation virtually eliminates exposurghe contaminated needle, effectively reducingritie of needlestic
injuries. Activation is easily accomplished in cstep, using one hand. Upon activation of theaotion mechanism, VanishPoihtsyringe:
are rendered unusable, reducing the risk of didgetsted injuries or reuse.

Our safety needle products have several advan@agasnon-retracting safety needles, including, hot limited to: preremova
activation; automated needle retraction; integratfdty mechanism; reuse prevention; ease of nsenimimal training.

BD and Covidien have controlling U.S. market shamater financial resources; larger and more &skednl sales, marketing, €
distribution organizations; and greater marketuefice, including longerm and/or exclusive contracts. The current domth have restricte
competition in the needle and syringe market. B&y e able to use its resources to improve itsymsdthrough research or acquisition
develop new products, which may compete more éffiegtwith our products.

Several factors could materially and beneficialfieet the marketability of our products. Demandildobe increased by existi
legislation and other legislative and investiga@fforts. Licensing agreements could provide emtty new markets and generate additi
revenue. Further, outsourcing arrangements cawtdedse our manufacturing capacity with little ar capital outlay and provide
competitive cost.

Two well-established companies control most of the U.S. atarOur competitive position is also weakened Hxy method thi
providers use for making purchasing decisions heddct that our initial price per unit for our egf needle products may be higher than ¢
of the less effective safety needle products theba the market.

Research and Development

We spent $885,445; $815,018; and $871,851 in fa@a0, 2011, and 2012 respectively, on researctdemelopment. Costs in 2C
were primarily for compensation and related besgfitong with engineering samples. Our ongoingarsh and development activities
performed by an internal research and developmafit @hd includes developing process improvemeotsctirrent and future automa
machines. Our limited access to the market haseslahe introduction of products. Possible futpreducts include other needle med
devices to which the automated retraction mechao&mbe applied as well as other safety medicatdsy

Environmental Compliance

We believe that we do not incur material costs amrection with compliance with environmental lawd/e are considered
Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator bessawe generate less than 100 kilograms
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(220 Ibs.) of hazardous waste per month. Therefoeeare exempt from the reporting requirementsa¢h by the Texas Commission
Environmental Quality. The waste that is generatealr facility is primarily made up of flammabigquids and paintelated waste and is s
for fuel blending by Safety Kleen. This fuel blémgl process completely destroys our waste andfigatisur “cradle-to-grave” responsibility.

Other nonhazardous production waste includes géeéypropylene regrind that is recycled. All othemhazardous waste produ
is considered municipal solid waste and sent tanétary landfill by CWD.

We also produce small amounts of regulated biollazer waste from contaminated sharps and laboratasyes. This waste is s
for incineration by Stericycle.

Employees
As of March 1, 2013, we had 158 employees. 15&1oh employees were full time employees.

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

We have minimal longdived assets in foreign countries. Shipments termational customers generally require a prepayreitine|
by wire transfer or an irrevocable confirmed letiecredit. We do extend credit to internationastomers on some occasions depending
certain criteria, including, but not limited to gtleredit worthiness of the customer, the stabdlftthe country, banking restrictions, and the
of the order. All transactions are in U.S. curgentf customers designate a specific destinatamité order, we attribute sales to count
based on the destination of shipment.

2012 2011 2010

U.S. sales $25,363,81 $26,655,78 $29,577,05
North and South America sales (excluding U 4,668,55! 4,736,35! 5,597,98!
Other international sales 3,612,13' 710,15¢ 1,044,52
Total sales $33,644,50 $32,102,29 $36,219,56
Long-lived asset:

u.s. $11,679,59 $12,412,50 $12,297,94

Internationa $ 220,05 $ 241,35 $ 262,65

Most international sales are filled by productisani Double Dove. In the event that we become wn#&blpurchase such prod
from Double Dove, we would need to find an alteersuipplier for the 0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5autodisable syringe, and the 5mL
10mL syringes and we would increase domestic priimuéor the 1mL and 3mL syringes.

Available Information

We make available, free of charge on our websitevwanishpoint.com), our Form 10-K Annual Reportdorm 10Q Quarterl
reports and current reports on Form 8-K (and angraiments to such reports) as soon as reasonalljcpiafter such reports are filed.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

We could be subject to complex and costly reguwatactivities. Our business could suffer if we air csuppliers encount
manufacturing problems. We could be subject thsrizssociated with doing business outside of ti& Wurrent or worsening econol
conditions may adversely affect our business amahfiial condition.

You should carefully consider the following matériaks facing us. If any of these risks occur; business, results of operations
financial condition could be materially affected.
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We Compete in a Monopolistic Marketplace

We operate in an environment that is dominated By e major syringe manufacturer in the U.S. Véwensued BD allegir
violations of antitrust acts, false advertisingyguct disparagement, tortious interference, andiunbmpetition. It is anticipated that this :
will be scheduled to be tried in the summer of 2013

Although we have made limited progress in somesamzch as the alternate care and some internbati@rkets, our volumes are |
as high as they should be given the nature andtgudlour products and the federal and state latis requiring the use of safe nee
devices.

We Have Generally Been Unable to Gain Sufficienth¢dAccess to Achieve Profitable Operations

We have a history of incurring net operating loss@¢e may experience operating losses in the futlfreve are unable to g
sufficient market access and market share, we raaynbble to continue to finance research and dpredat as well as support operations
expansion of production.

We Are Dependent on Our Aging Patent Protection

Our main competitive strength is our technologye We dependent on our patent rights, and if otenpaights are invalidated
circumvented, our business would be adversely &ffecPatent protection is considered, in the aggeg to be of material importance in
marketing of products in the U.S. and in most méjoeign markets. Patents covering products thathave introduced normally prov
market exclusivity, which is important for the sassful marketing and sale of our products.

As our technology ages (and the associated pateregXpires), our competitive position in the mdgtace will weaken. The initi
revolutionary spring action syringe patents willpgg beginning in May 2015. However, a significamatent will not expire un
August 2016. Patent life may be extended, notuiincthe original patents, but through related improents. Our ability to improve the
patents is uncertain. Eventually, however, ouepaprotection may decrease and we will be vulder&d other competitors utilizing ¢
technology.

Our Patents Are Subject to Litigation

We have been sued by BD and MDC Investment Holdilmgs for patent infringement. This case is cotiyestayed and no trial d¢
is set. Patent litigation and challenges involving patents are costly and unpredictable and negyivk us of market exclusivity for
patented product or, in some cases, third pargmnpsimay prevent us from marketing and sellingoalpet in a particular geographic area.

We Are Vulnerable to New Technologies

Because we have a narrow focus on particular ptdthes and technology (currently predominantlyaetable needle products),
are vulnerable to the development of superior cdmgeroducts and to changes in technology whiakicceliminate or reduce the need
our products. If a superior technology is creatlkd,demand for our products could greatly diminish

Our Competitors Have Greater Resources

Our competitors have greater financial resour@ger and more established sales and marketingliatribution organizations, a
greater market influence, including lotgrm contracts. These competitors may be ableséothese resources to improve their proc
through research and acquisitions or develop n@duymts, which may compete more effectively with products. If our competitors chou
to use their resources to create products superiours, we may be unable to sell our productsandability to continue operations would
weakened.
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The Majority of Our Sales Are Filled Using One Sligip

Most international syringe sales, as well as atsumiisl portion of domestic sales, are filled bpguction from Double Dove. Int
event that we become unable to purchase such grérdne Double Dove, we would need to find an alegensupplier for the 0.5mL insu
syringe, the 0.5mL autodisable syringe, and the 28mhL, and 10mL syringes and we would increase dbtim@roduction for the 1mL a
3mL syringes. Even with increased domestic prddoctve may not be able to avoid a disruption ippy. The 1mL and 3mL syringes m:
up 89.2% of our unit sales and 90.8% of our revenmnu&012.

Fluctuations in Supplies of Inventory Could Tempilydncrease Costs

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawterals and inventory and the ability to maintaandrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll of our products in the U.S. This could temggily increase unit costs as we ramj
domestic production.

We Are Controlled by One Shareholder

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chief Executiffieed, beneficially owned 36.21% of the outstargdli@ommon Stock (ar
controlled another 13.95% pursuant to a Voting &grent with Ms. Suzanne August and trust agreenfentie benefit of family membel
as of March 1, 2013. Mr. Shaw will, therefore, &dkie ability to direct our operations and finaheiffiairs and to substantially influence
election of members of our Board of Directors. Higrests may not always coincide with our inteyes the interests of other stockholdt
This concentration of ownership, for example, mayehthe effect of delaying, deferring, or prevemtan change in control, impeding
merger, consolidation, takeover, or other busimessbination involving us, or discouraging a potaingicquirer from making a tender offe
otherwise attempting to obtain control of us, whithurn could materially adversely affect the mergrice of our Common Stock.

We Have Limited Access to the Capital Markets

The volume of trading in our Common Stock on the M EYMKT LLC (“NYSE MKT”") (formerly the NYSE Amex or Americi
Stock Exchange) is low. Accordingly, it is uncléfthere is any significant market for our shar@his may reduce our ability to raise ¢
through public or private offerings in the future.

Our Stock Price Is Low

Our stock price may be deemed to have been séfling substantial period of time at a low price paare”which may result in o1
receipt of a notification from the NYSE MKT thatraverse split is necessary. We have received ob matification. When a compa
receives such a notification, failure to effecteaarse stock split may result in suspension or wvaifvom trading on the NYSE MKT. TI
NYSE MKT may initiate delisting procedures in itsctetion. Delisting of our shares would greatffeet the liquidity of our shares a
would reduce our ability to raise funds from théesaf equity in the future. However, we believelsuelisting application to be unlikel
Furthermore, in the event that we receive a defjidetter from the NYSE MKT, we will have the rigio appeal such determination.

Current Economic Conditions May Decrease Colleéitglnf Accounts

Although we believe that we have granted creditreditworthy firms, current economic conditions may affédte timing and/c
collectability of some accounts.

We Face Inherent Product Liability Risks

As a manufacturer and provider of safety needlelycts, we face an inherent business risk of exgogsuproduct liability claims.
a product liability claim is made and damages arexicess of our product liability coverage, our peiitive position could be weakened
the amount of money we could be required to pagotopensate those injured by our products. In teateof a recall, we do not have re
insurance.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable and none.

Item 2. Properties.

Our headquarters is located at 511 Lobo Lane, oacB&s, which we own, overlooking Lake Lewisvilfeliittle EIm, Texas. TF
headquarters are in good condition and house omnirgstrative offices and manufacturing facility.hd manufacturing facility produc
approximately 27.2% of the units that were manuifiaat in 2012. In the event that we become unabfautchase product from our outs
supplier, Double Dove, we would need to find aeralate supplier for the 0.5mL insulin syringe, themL autodisable syringe, and the &
and 10mL syringes and we would increase domesbtdymtion for the 1mL and 3mL syringes. The 5mL dfisnL syringes are sc
principally in the international market. In 2012 utilized approximately 35.0% of our current UpBoductive capacity.

A loan in the original principal amount of $4,21000is secured by our land and buildings. See Mdteour financial statements
more information.

In the opinion of Management, the property and paent are suitable for their intended use and dexj@ately covered by
insurance policy.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

In June 2010, Becton, Dickinson and Company (“BBI§d an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appeals (ti@otrt”) for the Feder:
Circuit appealing a final judgment entered on M8y 2010 for us and against BDtounterclaims in patent litigation. Such finadigmen
ordered that we recover $5,000,000 plus prejudgrimtetest, and ordered a permanent injunction fdfsBlmL and 3mL Integra syrinc
until the expiration of certain patents. The panera injunction was stayed for the longer of theaastion of the appeal of the district cosirt’
case or twelve months from May 19, 2010. In J@§P a three-judge panel of the Court reversedligteict court’'s judgment that BB'3mL
Integra infringed our ‘224 patent and ‘077 patenhe Court affirmed the district court’'s judgmenat the 1mL Integra infringes o244 an
‘733 patents. The Court also affirmed the distcimtirt’s judgment that thé@77 patent is not invalid for anticipation or ohwsmess. We hi
petitioned for a rehearing by all the judges of Fexleral Circuit as to whether the thjadge panel properly construed our patent c
language in finding that the 3mL Integra did ndtimge. Our petition for rehearing by all of the judgestioé Federal Circuit was denied w
two dissents being issued. We filed a petition dertiorari asking the Supreme Court to review ithatter. That petition was deniec
January of 2013. The U.S. District Court for thestean District of Texas is currently consideringttial motions regarding the effect of-
partial reversal without remand on the terms offihal judgment.

In May 2010, our and Mr. Shaw/suit against BD in the U.S. District Court foetkastern District of Texas, Marshall Divis
alleging violations of antitrust acts, false adigng, product disparagement, tortious interfereraeel unfair competition was reopened.
and Mr. Shaw filed a Second Amended Complaint dg 28, 2010 setting forth additional detail regaglithe allegations of BB’illega
conduct. BD filed a motion to dismiss and the Galenied that motion in part and granted it in pgranting us the right to nelead certai
allegations by May 13, 2011. We and Mr. Shaw fied@hird Amended Complaint in May 2011, settingtioadditional detail regarding t
alleged illegal conduct by BD. Trial was initialiet for February 2012. However, in January 20&2parties agreed to a continuance to ¢
the petition for certiorari to be considered. Aated above, the petition was denied in JanuaB0&B. A pretrial conference and trial set
is set for May 15, 2013 and it is currently belidikat trial will proceed in the summer of 2013.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdimgs, (‘MDC”) sued us in the United States District Court for Heester
District of Texas, Texarkana Division, initiallyleging that we are infringing two U.S. patents ob® (6,179,812 and 7,090,656) that
licensed to BD. BD and MDC seek injunctive relagfd unspecified damages. We counterclaimed foladgons of norinfringement
invalidity, and unenforceability of the assertedepds. The plaintiffs subsequently dropped allegatwith regard to patent no. 7,090,656
we subsequently dropped our counterclaims for wreaability of the asserted patents. The Courtluoted a claims construction hearing
September 25, 2008 and issued its claims conatructider on November 14, 2008. The case has liagedspending resolution of our fi
filed case against BD described above.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases ofduity Securities.
MARKET INFORMATION
Our Common Stock has been listed on the NYSE MKdeunrthe symbol “RVP’since May 4, 2001. Our closing price on Marc

2013, was $0.99 per share. Shown below are the dmg low sales prices of our Common Stock as teddsy the NYSE MKT for ea
guarter of the last two fiscal years:

2012 High Low
Fourth Quarte $1.23 $0.75
Third Quartel $1.40 $0.90
Second Quarte $1.60 $0.90
First Quartel $1.65 $1.00

2011 High Low
Fourth Quarte $1.45 $1.00
Third Quartel $1.56 $1.10
Second Quarte $1.78 $1.30
First Quartel $2.25 $1.38

SHAREHOLDERS

As of March 1, 2013, there were 27,248,209 shaf€ommon Stock held by 253 shareholders of recotdntluding shareholde
who beneficially own Common Stock held in nomineéstreet name.”

DIVIDENDS
We have not ever declared or paid any dividendtherCommon Stock. We have no current plans togogycash dividends on 1
Common Stock. We intend to retain all earningsepx those required to be paid to the holders efftteferred Stock as resources allo

support operations and future growth. Dividends@wmmon Stock cannot be paid so long as preferireideshds are unpaid. As
December 31, 2012, there was an aggregate of $dillidn in preferred dividends in arrears.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Seeltem 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owmers and Management and Related Stockholder Matterfor a chat
describing compensation plans under which equityrséées are authorized.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH
The following graph compares the cumulative togaim for our Common Stock from December 31, 2@Décember 31, 2012,
the total returns for the Russell Microcap andtBegcDickinson and Company (or “BDX"} peer issuer. The graph assumes an inves
of $100 in the aforementioned equities as of Deaarith, 2007, and that all dividends are reinvested.
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COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND REEIATED PURCHASERS

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer affitlad¢d Purchasers

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of

== Russell Microcap

Maximum Number (or

Total Shares (or Units) Approximate Dollar
Number Average Purchased as Part Value) of Shares (or
of Shares Price Paid of Publicly Units) that May Yet Be
(or Units) Per Share Announced Plans Purchased Under the
Period Purchase! (or Unit) or Program: Plans or Progranm
October 1, 2012 through
October 31, 201 8,086 $1.19 8,086 $2,945,84:
November 1, 2012 throu¢
November 30, 201 6,663 $1.12 6,663 $2,938,351
December 1, 2012 through
December 31, 201 14,038 $0.94 14,038 $2,925,11¢
TOTAL 28,787 $1.05 28,787 $2,925,11¢

These shares were purchased pursuant to our CorSteck repurchase plan structured to comply witheRdlOb5-1 and 10b8
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, annalinceForm 8K on July 12, 2012. On July 10, 2012, the Boar®iwéctors authorized tl
repurchase of up to $3 million of Common Stock sabjo Rule 1048 limitations as well as certain market value ¢a@ists specified in t
plan. Notwithstanding the terms of the plan, tRact dollar amount and number of shares which mapulrchased pursuant to the pla
difficult to predict given the current market iretEompany’s Common Stock. The plan will expirefargust 1, 2014 at the latest.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data is qualifiegl reference to, and should be read in conjuncivith, our audited financi
statements and the notes to those statements andgelaens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord a&esults of Operatio
appearing elsewhere herein. The selected StatsroEftperations data presented below for the yeadled December 31, 2009 and 2008
the Balance Sheet data as of December 31, 201@®, 20@ 2008 have been derived from our auditechéiish statements, which are
included herein.

(In thousands except for earnings per share, shamespercentages)*
As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Sales, net $ 33,64 $ 32,10 $ 36,21¢ $ 38,98: $ 27,89¢
Cost of sales 22,46¢ 21,19¢ 23,69¢ 25,46¢ 19,67:
Gross profit 11,17¢ 10,90: 12,52: 13,51¢ 8,22¢
Total operating expenses 15,11¢ 14,99: 19,18¢ 26,81: 18,67
Loss from operations (3,939 (4,090 (6,669 (13,29¢) (10,44%)
Interest incom 47 63 32 58 85¢
Interest expense, n (231) (247) (302 (22 (54)
Litigation settlements, net — 5,70( 9,15¢ — —
Income (loss) before income taxes (4,129 1,432 2,22t (13,260) (9,649
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 10 14 (17€) (3,839 —
Net income (loss (4,137 1,41¢ 2,401 (9,427) (9,649
Preferred Stock dividend requireme (918 (964) (1,377 (1,377 (1,379
Earnings (loss) applicable to common

shareholder $ (5,05)) $ 454 1,03C $ (10,799 $ (11,019
Earnings (loss) per share — basic ¢ (0.19 $ 0.0 $ 0.04 $ (0.45 ¢ (0.4€)
Earnings (loss) per sha— diluted ~ $ (0.19 $ 0.0z $ 0.04 $ 049 3 (0.46)
Weighted average shares outstanding

— basic 26,219,72 24,171,23 23,872,78 23,806,53 23,794,56
Weighted average shares outstanding

— diluted 26,219,72 26,354,78 26,248,87 23,806,53 23,794,56
Current assel $ 35,441 $ 35,90 $ 40,22¢ % 39,26: $ 43,61«
Current liabilities $ 8,071 $ 6,128 $ 9,98¢ $ 13,19¢ $ 10,23¢
Property, plant, and equipment, 1  $ 11,90 $ 12,65: $ 12,56 $ 14,23 $ 14,43¢
Total asset $ 47,63: $ 48,92( $ 53,19: $ 53,94. $ 58,53¢
Long-term debt, net of current

maturities $ 3,82¢ % 4,14  $ 4,30¢ $ 4,82 $ 6,09¢
Stockholder’ equity $ 35,72¢ % 38,65. $ 38,90 $ 3592( $ 42,20¢
Redeemable Preferred Stock (in

shares 1,001,55: 1,001,55: 2,279,01 2,285,26! 2,285,261
Capital lease
Cash dividends per common sh $ — 3 — — $ — $ —
Gross profit margit 33.2% 34.(% 34.€% 34.1% 29.5%
* Events that could affect the trenddicated above include continued reductions in ufecturing costs, changingverage sali

prices, the gaining of market access, protectioausfpatents, foreign currency exchange ratesivibdical Device Excise Tax, the impac
flu season requirements, and new products. Apamducts are
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made from petroleum products, the changing cosil@nd transportation may have an impact on ogtsto the extent increases may nc
recoverable through price increases of our prodaictsreductions in oil prices may not quickly affpetroleum product prices. Sales to
Department of Health and Human Services (“DHH&3mprised 24.4% of our revenues for the twelve m®mnded December 31, 2C
which affects comparability between 2009 and offears. Receipt of settlement proceeds and optaympnts from Abbott and Hosp
positively affected 2010 and 2011 results. An agrent reached in the second quarter of 2010 witHitigation counsel to cap certain le
fees has contributed to a lower level of expeng&st purchase in 2011 of a total of 1,277,464 shafeour Preferred Stock (which purch
required the selling Preferred Stockholder to wailleinpaid dividends in arrears) in exchange for @Gommon Stock and cash have red:
our Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements.

Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in thisgficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs‘anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fomvkroking statements within the meaning of the Pavaecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forwarddooking statements involve known and unknown riskscertainties, and other factors that may caugeactual result
performance, or achievements to be materially diffe from any future results, performance, or adheents expressed or implied by <
forward{ooking statements. Such factors include, amomhgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our maingnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation, our ability to mairmafavorable supplier arrangements and relatiorsstopr ability to quickly increase capacit
response to an increase in demand, our abilitg¢ess the market, our ability to maintain or lowesduction costs, our ability to continue
finance research and development as well as opesatand expansion of production, the increasedesteof larger market playe
specifically BD, in providing devices to the safeharket, and other factors referenced in Iltem 1i&kFactors. Given these uncertain
undue reliance should not be placed on forwarditapktatements.

OVERVIEW

We have been manufacturing and marketing our ptediioce 1997. Safety syringes comprised 99.1%upkales in 2012. We a
manufacture and market the blood collection tublddro |V safety catheter, and VanishPoHBlood Collection Set. We currently prov
other safety medical products in addition to safatyducts utilizing retractable technology. Onetsproduct is the Patient Safesyringe
which is uniquely designed to reduce the risk obblistream infections resulting from catheter hufitamination.

Historically, unit sales have increased in theslapart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season.

While our sales and expenses have not fluctuatpdfisiantly over the last three years, our loss gieare for 2012 was materic
different than 2011 and 2010 predominantly becafisiee litigation settlements received in 2011 20d0, as described herein.

Our products have been and continue to be distbuationally and internationally through numerdigributors. Although w
have made limited progress in some areas, sudfeadternate care market, our volumes are notgisds they should be given the nature
quality of our products and the federal and steggslation requiring the use of safe needle devithe alternate care market is compose
alternate care facilities that provide long-ternrsimg and oupatient surgery, emergency care, and physicianicesv The fact that o
progress is limited is principally due to exclusivarketing practices engaged in by BD, the dominaaiter and seller of disposable syrir
and other needle products, which practices havekbtb us from access to the market. A suit agadistis currently pending allegi
violations of state and federal antitrust acts faf&e advertising.

We continue to pursue various strategies to hatterb@ccess to the hospital market, as well ag atlagkets, including attempting
gain access to the market through our sales effontsinnovative technology, introduction of nevagucts, and, when necessary, litigation.
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In the event we continue to have only limited markecess and the cash provided by the litigatidtleseents and generated fr
operations becomes insufficient, we would take tamltkl cost cutting measures to reduce cash regeinés. Such measures could rest
the reduction of units being produced, the reductibworkforce, the reduction of salaries of offe@and other nonhourly employees, anc
deferral of royalty payments. We took such actiahshe end of the second quarter of 2009. Satkeayctions put in place in the sec
quarter of 2009 remain in place for executive @ffic but all other employees affected by the sakaayiction had their salaries increase
the amount of the reduction, effective August 6120

Section 4191 of the Internal Revenue Code, endntdte Health Care and Education Reconciliation @010 in conjunction wit
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Actyjites for an excise tax of 2.3% on medical devimeginning in 2013. At the present ti
the excise tax is applicable to domestic salesuofppoducts, except those which are sold to exengmnizations. The majority of our se
are domestic and not in the retail market. Theisarmposed on sales, not profits. We estimatearipact of this tax to be in excess of
million dollars in 2013. There is no assurance tax can be passed along to our customérsrough March 14, 2013, we have paid ¢
thousand in Medical Device Excise Taxes.

We have brought additional molding operations ttiléiEIm as a cost saving measure. The additiofowf molding machines
2012 was part of that endeavor. We also continuedus on methods of upgrading our manufacturingability and efficiency in order
reduce costs.

In 2010 and 2011, in connection with a settlemgneament, the Company received quarterly optionmaans, totaling $8 milliol
from Hospira for a one-year option to negotiatécarising agreement for certain uses of the PaBaf¢® syringe. This option expir
unexercised in July 2011.

On September 12, 2011, we commenced an offer ithpae outstanding Class B Convertible PreferredkStr cash and Comm
Stock and also engaged in private purchases wide tAreferred Stockholders. As of December 311 2Bfieferred Stockholders had tend
a total of 1,277,464 shares of Preferred Stocktotal of $1,357,275 was paid and 1,277,464 shafeSommmon Stock were issued
consideration to these Preferred Stockholders.s@ referred Stockholders agreed to waive all uhgaidends in arrears associated 1
their tendered Preferred Stock, which resultedwagver of a total of $3,592,659 in unpaid dividend arrears.

On July 10, 2012, we authorized a Common Stockroffase plan structured to comply with Rules 10kdnd 10b18 under th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under the plae,purchased 67,102 shares in 2012. Notwithstaniegerms of the plan, the ex
number of shares which may be purchased in theeyiursuant to the plan is difficult to predict givthe current market in our Comn
Stock.

Pursuant to the Certificates of Designation, Pefees, Rights And Limitations of the Series| CRsand Series Il Class
Convertible Preferred Stock, we would be prohibfredn purchasing our Common Stock while dividendsia arrears. Therefore, in orde
continue the Common Stock repurchase plan, we fglasontinue to pay quarterly dividends on the Seri€lass B and Series Il Clas
Preferred Stock if such payments can be made iordance with state law and other contractual obibga.

Product purchases from Double Dove, a Chinese raaturer, have enabled us to increase manufactadpgcity with little capit:
outlay and have provided a competitive manufactuigost. In 2012, Double Dove manufactured apprakéty 72.0% of the units v
produced. In the event that we become unableitchpse product from our outside supplier, Doubled)eve would need to find an alterr
supplier for the 0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mutadisable syringe, and the 5mL and 10mL syringes we would increase dome:
production for the 1mL and 3mL syringes.

In 1995, we entered into a license agreement withnTas J. Shaw for the exclusive right to manufactararket, and distribL
products utilizing automated retraction technologhhis technology is the subject of various patentsl patent applications owned
Mr. Shaw. The license agreement generally providegjuarterly payments of a 5% royalty fee on greales. This license agreement
amended as of September 7, 2012 to clarify andos#t the calculation and amount of the royaltyliming in the event that we he
sublicensed our products.
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With increased volumes, our manufacturing unit €dsive generally tended to decline. Factors tbatdcaffect our unit cos
include increases in costs by third party manufact changing production volumes, costs of petiralg@roducts, and transportation co
Increases in such costs may not be recoverablaghrprice increases of our products.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains trend informatiand other forwardeoking statements that involve a number of risks
uncertainties. Our actual future results couldedifmaterially from our historical results of opgoas and those discussed in the forward-
looking statements. All period references areuofiscal years ended December 2012, 2011, or 2@kdlar amounts have been roundec
ease of reading.

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2012 and Year Ended December 31, 2011

Domestic sales accounted for 75.4% and 83.0% ofdhenues in 2012 and 2011, respectively. Domestienues decreased 4.
principally due to a decrease in unit sales anmireeit average price. Domestic unit sales decre2d@d. Domestic unit sales were 64.09
total unit sales for 2012. International revenimeseased from $5.4 million in 2011 to $8.3 million2012, primarily due to higher volur
mitigated by lower average prices. Overall uniesancreased 14.7%. Our international orders beagubject to significant fluctuation o
time. Such orders may fluctuate due to healtlisitives at various times, as well as economic doT.

Cost of sales increased $2.7 million due to gresadgs volumes mitigated by a decrease of $1.5omitlue to lower unit costs
manufacture. Royalty expenses increased $49 thdudae to higher gross sales. Gross profit mardeweased from 34.0% in 2011
33.2% in 2012.

Operating expenses increased 0.8% from the priar gee to higher compensation in our Sales and etiagkdepartment attributal
to increasing sales and marketing staff and boaysap well as increased travel and entertainmepdrese. Our litigation costs were highe
2012. These increases in costs were reduced ®r loests of patents and bad debt expense.

Loss from operations was $3.9 million in 2012 coregato an operating loss of $4.1 million in 2011.
In 2011, “Litigation settlements, net” reflectecshgproceeds of $6.0 million net of a $300 thousaydlty payment.

Cash flow from operations was $158 thousand fo22lie primarily to decreases in current assetsramdases in current liabilitie
The effect of the net loss was mitigated by noriadsarges, principally depreciation.

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2011 and Year Ended December 31, 2010

Revenues decreased 11.4%, due principally to lmekme and lower average sales price. Domest&ssakre 83.0% of revent
with international sales comprising the remaindenit sales decreased 6.3%. Domestic unit salesedsed 1.9% and average sales [
decreased 8.2%. International unit sales decreEs@&8 and average international selling pricesetesed 2.7%.

Cost of sales decreased due to lower volumes avet lonit costs. Royalty expenses decreased dioevtr gross sales revenues.
a result, gross profit margins decreased from 3462010 to 34.0% in 2011.

Operating expenses decreased 21.9% from the pemrdue to lower litigation costs of $2.9 millidawer stock option expense
$1.2 million, bonuses paid in 2010 of $630 thousal an impairment charge of $365 thousand in 2B&d debt expense and le
expenses related to patent matters increased. rLdgigation costs are the result of an agreemeativben us and our counsel to cap ce
litigation fees.
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Loss from operations was $4.1 million in 2011 corepiao an operating loss in 2010 of $6.7 million.
Litigation settlements, net reflects cash proce#d&6.0 million net of a $300 thousand royalty payr

The provision for income taxes consists principallyp43 thousand of state and local income taxesaacredit to federal income 1
of $29 thousand.

Cash flow from operations was $5.5 million for 20dde principally to litigation settlements, a retioic in accounts receivat
balances and inventories. A decrease in accrabdities and net income mitigated the increaseeaish flow.

LIQUIDITY

At the present time, Management does not intermadite equity capital. Due to the funds receivednfiprior litigation settlemen
we have sufficient cash reserves and intend toarlgperations, cash reserves, and debt finansitigeaprimary ongoing sources of cash.

Our note to Katie Petroleum was paid in full in &epber 2012. Our payments were approximately $&7p&r month.

Historical Sources of Liguidity

We have historically funded operations primarilgrfr the proceeds from revenues, private placemétiggtion settlements, ai
loans.

Internal Sources of Liquidity

Margins and Market Access

To routinely achieve break even quarters, we nemihmal access to hospital markets which has befficut to obtain due to tr
monopolistic marketplace which was the subjectuwfianitial lawsuit and now also included in our sed antitrust lawsuit against BDWe
will continue to attempt to gain access to the raathrough our sales efforts, innovative technojdbeg introduction of new products, a
when necessary, litigation.

We continue to focus on methods of upgrading ounufecturing capability and efficiency in order duce costs.

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawterals and inventory and our ability to maintaévdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactli (as opposed to 27.2%) of our products inUdt®. This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

The mix of domestic and international sales afféwtsaverage sales price of our products. Gewgethl higher the ratio of domes
sales to international sales, the higher the aeesades price will be. Typically international esalare shipped directly from China to
customer. Purchases of product manufactured in&Clifi available, usually decrease the averageafostanufacture for all units. Domes
costs, such as indirect labor and overhead, renetatively constant. The number of units produbgdis versus manufactured in China
have a significant effect on the carrying costsnventory as well as Cost of sales. We will conérnto evaluate the appropriate mi>
products manufactured domestically and those matwfed in China to achieve economic benefits ad a®lto maintain our domes
manufacturing capability.

Fluctuations in the cost of oil (since our produats petroleum based) and transportation and themeoof units purchased frc
Double Dove may have an impact on the unit cossuofproduct. Increases in such costs may notebeverable through price increase
our products. Reductions in oil prices may nothlyi affect petroleum product prices.

18




Table of Contents
Seasonality

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelattart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season.
Cash Requirements

Due to funds received from prior litigation settkents, we have sufficient cash reserves and intengtly on operations, ca
reserves, and debt financing as the primary ongstgces of cash. In the event we continue to loenye limited market access and ¢
generated from operations becomes insufficient uppsrt operations, we would take additional costting measures to reduce c¢
requirements. Such measures could result in tthectimn of units being produced, the reduction afrkforce, the reduction of salaries
officers and other nonhourly employees, and therdaf of royalty payments.

External Sources of Liguidity

We have obtained several loans from our inceptidrich have, together with the proceeds from thessaf equities and litigatis
efforts, enabled us to pursue development and ptimdtu of our products. Given the current economanditions, our ability to obta
additional funds through loans is uncertain. Femttore, the shareholders previously authorizeddaiitianal 5,000,000 shares of a Clas
Preferred Stock that could, if necessary, be desgghand used to raise funds through the saleuiyegDue to the current market price of
Common Stock, it is unlikely we would choose tseafunds by the sale of equity.

In 2010 and 2011, in connection with a settlemegmneament, the Company received quarterly optionmeans, totaling $8 milliol
from Hospira, Inc. for a one-year option to negstia licensing agreement for certain uses of themeSafe® syringe. This option expir
unexercised in July 2011.

On July 10, 2012, Thomas J. Shaw, our chief exeeubfficer, exercised a portion of his stock optiohhe Company issu
2,000,000 shares of Common Stock to him at an eseeprice of $0.81 (aggregate consideration of 21,®00).

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Repurchase of Common Stock

On July 10, 2012, we authorized a Common Stockrodfase plan structured to comply with Rules 10kb&dl 10bi8 under th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under the plae,purchased 67,102 shares in 2012. Notwithstaniiegerms of the plan, the ex
number of shares which may be purchased in theefygursuant to the plan is difficult to predict givthe current market in our Comn
Stock.

Pursuant to the Certificates of Designation, Pesfees, Rights And Limitations of the Series | Cl@ssind Series Il Class
Convertible Preferred Stock, we would be prohibfredn purchasing our Common Stock while dividendsia arrears. Therefore, in orde
continue the Common Stock repurchase plan, we tolatontinue to pay dividends on the Series | CBisnd Series |1l Class B Prefer
Stock if such payments can be made in accordartbesteite law and other contractual obligations.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

None.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following chart summarizes our material obligas and commitments to make future payments uodetracts for londern
debt as of December 31, 2012:
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Payments Due by Period

Less More
Than 1-3 3-5 Than 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt $ 4,141,29 $ 315,08¢ $ 396,80( $ 328,39: $ 3,101,00!
Operating leases 184,38! 61,60" 122,77 — —
Total ¢ 432568 $ 376,69 $ 519,58( $ 328,39: $ 3,101,00

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We consider the following to be our most significaocounting policies. Careful consideration amdew is given to these and
accounting policies on a routine basis to ensuxettiey are accurately and consistently applied.

Accounts Receivable

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custont@us.allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that ardtflduof collection are included in t
allowance. This provision is reviewed to determine adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accaurtrade receivables are chargec
when there is certainty as to their being uncalliéet Trade receivables are considered delinquéngn payment has not been made w
contract terms.

We require certain distributors to make a prepaymeéor to beginning production or shipment of thaider. Distributors may apy
such prepayments to their outstanding invoicesagrtpe invoice and continue to carryforward theadd#ipfor future orders. Such amounts
included in Other accrued liabilities on the Baku&heets and are shown in Note 6, Other Accrudiilities.

We record an allowance for estimated returns asdaction to accounts receivable and gross saléstoridally, returns have be
immaterial.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and afskwnership passes to the customer, generally ghipment. Under certe
contracts, revenue is recorded on the basis of galee to distributors, less contractual pricitigvaances. Contractual pricing allowan
consist of (i) rebates granted to distributors vgmovide tracking reports which show, among othéngs, the facility that purchased
products, and (ii) a provision for estimated coctinal pricing allowances for products that we hagereceived tracking reports. Rebates
recorded when issued and are applied against s$terners receivable balance. Distributors receive a ebat the difference between
Wholesale Acquisition Cost and the appropriate r@mttprice as reflected on a tracking report predithy the distributor to us. If produc
sold by a distributor to an entity that has no caxtt there is a standard rebate (lower than a&cted rebate) given to the distributor. On
the purposes of the rebate is to encourage distribuo submit tracking reports to us. The provisfor contractual pricing allowances
reviewed at the end of each quarter and adjustedhfanges in levels of products for which ther@astracking report. Additionally, if
becomes clear that tracking reports will not bevghed by individual distributors, the provisionfigther adjusted. The estimated contrac
allowance is included in Accounts payable in thdaBee Sheets and deducted from revenues in thenstats of Operations. Accou
payable included estimated contractual allowanoe$3,036,564 and $2,170,764 for 2012 and 201peaively. The terms and conditic
of contractual pricing allowances are governed bptiacts between us and our distributors. Revéoushipments directly to endsers i
recognized when title and risk of ownership pass®a us. Any product shipped or distributed foakesation purposes is expensed.
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Certain distributors have taken rebates to whi@y thare not entitled, such as utilizing a rebatepiamducts not purchased dire«
from us. We have been in discussions with thecpral customers that claimed noontractual rebates. Major customers said theg
ceased the practices resulting in claiming nontractual rebates. Rebates can only be claimgolochases made directly from us. We |
established a reserve for the collectability ofsth@oneontractual rebate amounts. The expense for therre is recorded in Operat
expense, General and administrative. The resernguth non-contractual deductions is includedhéallowance for doubtful accounts.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providémt a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artied the distributois facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipc We will not accept returned goods withouetrned goods authorization numtk
We may refund the customer’s money or replace thduzt.

Our domestic return policy also generally provitlest a customer may return product that is ovek&thc Overstocking returns
limited to two times in each 12 month period ugl® of distributors total purchase of products for the prior 12 mgehiod. All produc
overstocks and returns are subject to inspectidraaneptance by us.

Our international distribution agreements generddélynot provide for any returns.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or regriith cost being determined using actual avecage. We compare the aver
cost to the market price and record the lower valManagement considers such factors as the anmaduinventory on hand and in t
distribution channel, estimated time to sell sunkentory, the shelf life of inventory, and curremarket conditions when determining exc
or obsolete inventories. A reserve is establisbedny excess or obsolete inventories or they beawritten off.

Marketing Fees

In prior periods, Marketing fees payable to Abheére included in current liabilities in the Balarf8beets. In connection with
settlement with Abbott, Marketing fees payable rded in previous periods will not have to be paidhe reversal of this accrual is inclu
in Litigation settlements, net on the Statement®pérations in 2010.

Recent Pronouncement

On October 1, 2012, the FASB issued Accounting &eds Update (“ASU") 2012-04echnical Corrections and Improvements .
This ASU makes certain incremental improvementd 6. GAAP, including, among other revisions, conforg amendments that ident
when the use of fair value should be linked todkénition of fair value in ASC 820. The majorit§ the amendments in ASU 2002- were
effective upon issuance and the more substantivndments that are subject to transition guidaneesHective for fiscal periods beginn
after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this A&l not have an impact on our financial positiogsults of operations, cash flows
financial statement disclosures and we do not execfuture adoption of the transition provisiafghis ASU to have a material impact
such items.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.
We believe that our market risk exposures regardimgcash and cash equivalents are immaterial adowet have instruments
trading purposes. We shifted the bulk of our fumite U.S. Treasury bills and other U.S. governmiesmtked securities in April 200

Additionally, reasonable, possible near-term charigenarket rates or prices will not result in mialechanges in near-term earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Retractable Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeReiéctable Technologies, Inc. as of December 812 2and 2011, and the rela
statements of operations, changes in stockhol@éensity, and cash flows for each of the three yeathe period ended December 31, 2(
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale of Retractable Technologies, Inc., listetédm 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsibilftthe Company management. Our responsibility is to expres®p@nion on thes
financial statements and schedule based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightuBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet anidibtain reasonable assurance about whethdmggcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform an audit of itsrival control over financial reportin
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for designaudit procedures that are appropria
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of esging an opinion on the effectiveness of the Comigamternal control over financ
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinigkn audit includes examining, on a test basisgdence supporting the amounts

disclosures in the financial statements, assegbimgaccounting principles used and significantnestés made by management, as we
evaluating the overall financial statement pres@ra We believe that our audits provide a reabthasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respectse financial position of Retractal
Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and ,28id the results of its operations and its casldlfor each of the three years in
period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles.oAils our opinion, the related financ
statement schedule, when considered in relatidghddasic financial statements taken as a whotsenits fairly in all material respects
information set forth therein.

/s CF & Co., L.L.P
CF &Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
April 1, 2013
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubsfttounts of $2,186,190 and $2,078,944,

respectively
Inventories, ne
Income taxes receivab
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant, and equipment, |
Intangible and other assets, net
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accrued compensatic
Dividends payabli
Accrued royalties to shareholde
Other accrued liabilitie
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci- See Note ¢

Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred Stock $1 par valt
Class B; authorized: 5,000,000 she

Series |, Class B; outstanding: 103,500 sharesi@aion preference of $646,87
Series Il, Class B; outstanding 178,700 sharesidation preference of $2,233,7¢
Series lll, Class B; outstanding: 130,245 shaiigsiflation preference of $1,628,0¢
Series IV, Class B; outstanding: 542,500 shargsifiation preference of $5,967,5(
Series V, Class B; outstanding: 46,607 sharesidlajion preference of $205,07
Common Stock, no par value; authorized: 100,000¢0@0es; outstanding: 27,252,463 and

25,318,700 shares, respectiv
Additional paic-in capital
Retained defici

Common stock in treasury - at cost; 67,102 andadesh respectively

Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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December 31

2012 2011
$ 2596331 $ 25673,26
3,694,30 3,734,68
4,990,25: 6,237,41"
9,431 39,48t
783,76 218,52
35,441,06 35,903,38
11,899,65 12,653,85
291,44« 362,97

$ 4763215 $ 48,920.21
$ 509988 $  3,658,57
315,08 620,47.
809,59; 628,79
57,61 —
129,10° 122,23¢
1,665,671 1,065,94:

— 29,47
8,076,95. 6,125,49!
3,826,211 4,143,26
11,903,16 10,268,76
103,50( 103,50(
178,70 178,70
130,24! 130,24!
542,50 542,50
46,60 46,60
58,617,30 57,284,67
(23,767,66) (19,634,77)
(122,20) —
35,728,99 38,651,45

$ 47,632,415 $ 48,920,21
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Sales, net $ 3364450 $ 32,102,29 $ 36,219,56
Cost of Sale:
Costs of manufactured prodt 19,776,19 18,556,25 20,757,48
Royalty expense to shareholders 2,691,88 2,643,20' 2,940,94:
Total cost of sales 22,468,08 21,199,46 23,698,43
Gross profit 11,176,41 10,902,83 12,521,12
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 4,220,80: 3,439,53! 3,674,16:
Research and developme 871,85: 815,01¢ 885,44!
General and administrati\ 10,022,62 10,738,11 14,260,15
Impairment of assets — — 365,29!
Total operating expenses 15,115,28 14,992,66 19,185,05
Loss from operations (3,938,86) (4,089,83) (6,663,93)
Interest and other incon 46,99¢ 62,59¢ 32,32«
Interest expense, n (231,210) (240,48:) (302,84
Litigation settlements, net — 5,700,001 9,159,08!
Income (loss) before income taxes (4,123,07) 1,432,227 2,224,63
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 9,81¢ 13,79 (176,05)
Net income (loss) (4,132,89) 1,418,48 2,400,69
Preferred Stock dividend requirements (918,109 (964,04 (1,370,621
Earnings (loss) applicable to common shareholders $ (5,051,000 $ 454,43"  $ 1,030,07
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (019 $ 0.02 $ 0.04
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (0.19) $ 0.0z $ 0.04
Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic 26,219,72 24,171,23 23,872,78
Diluted 26,219,72 26,354,78 26,248,87

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance as of
December 31, 20C

Conversion of Preferred
Stock into Common
Stock

Recognition of stock
option compensatio

Recognition of stock
option exercist

Payment of dividend
Net income

Balance as of
December 31, 201
Exchange of Preferred
Stock for Common
Stock

Purchase of Preferred
Stock

Recognition of stock
option exercist

Payment of dividend
Net income

Balance as of
December 31, 201

Recognition of stock
option exercist

Payment of dividend
Declaration of dividend

Repurchase of Common
Stock

Net loss

Balance as of
December 31, 201

Series | Class B Series Il Class B Series Il Class B Series IV Class B Series V Class B Common
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
144,000 $ 144,00( 219,70 $ 219,70( 130,24! $130,24! 552,50( $ 552,501 1,238,82 $1,238,82 23,825,14 $ —
— — — — — — —_ — (6,25() (6,250) 6,25( —
— — — — — — — — — — 142,71! —
144,000  144,00( 219,70C  219,70( 130,24  130,24! 552,50(  552,50( 1,232,57 1,232,57 23,974,11 —
(40,500 (40,500 (41,000 (41,000 — — (10,000 (10,000  (1,185,96) (1,185,96)  1,277,46. —
— — — — — — — — — — 67,12. —
103,50( 103,50( 178,70( 178,70( 130,24! 130,24! 542 ,50( 542,50( 46,60 46,60 25,318,70 —
— — — — — — — — — — 2,000,86! —
— — — — — — — — — — (67,10) —
103,50 $ 103,50( 178,700 $ 178,70( 130,24! $ 130,24! 542,500 $ 542,50( 46,607 $  46,60: 27,252,46 $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Additional
Paid-in Retained Treasury
Capital Deficit Stock Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 57,089,115 $ (23,453,94) — $ 35,920,47
Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St 6,25( — — —
Recognition of stock option compensat 1,340,30! — — 1,340,301
Recognition of stock option exerci 115,60( — — 115,601
Payment of dividend (876,56¢) — — (876,56()
Net income — 2,400,69 — 2,400,69.
Balance as of December 31, 2( 57,674,73 (21,053,25) — 38,900,50
Exchange of Preferred Stock for Common St 1,277,46. — — —
Purchase of Preferred Stc (1,357,27) — — (1,357,27)
Recognition of stock option exerci 54,36¢ — — 54,36
Payment of dividend (364,62) — — (364,62))
Net income — 1,418,48. — 1,418,48.
Balance as of December 31, 2( 57,284,67 (19,634,77) — 38,651,45
Recognition of stock option exerci 1,620,70: — — 1,620,70
Payment of dividend (230,45() — — (230,45()
Declaration of dividend (57,617 — — (57,619
Repurchase of Common Sta — — (122,203 (122,209
Net loss — (4,132,89) — (4,132,89)
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 58,617,30 $ (23,767,66) (122,20) $  35,728,99

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss $ (413289) $ 1,418,48; 2,400,69.
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by (used by)

operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 1,335,85 1,311,74 1,516,22

Litigation settlemen- marketing fees payab — — (1,419,761

Stock option compensatic — — 1,340,301

Provision for inventory valuatio 120,00( 52,83t —

Reserve for nc-contractual deductior — — 850,00(

Provision for doubtful accoun 107,24¢ 1,298,04. 133,99(

Impairment of asse — — 365,29!

Accreted interes 3,77: 17,61( 30,92(

(Increase) decrease in ass

Inventories 1,127,16 2,391,93 (1,774,82)
Accounts receivabl (66,867 1,305,37 2,650,56'
Income taxes receivab 30,05¢ (27,459 3,643,601
Other current asse (565,23) 462,71! (56,857
Increase (decrease) in liabilitie
Accounts payabl 1,441,30: 1,054,56. (4,417,75)
Accrued liabilities, othe 787,39: (3,646,55) 3,313,261
Income taxes payab (29,477) (125,529 155,00(
Net cash provided by operating activit 158,33 5,513,77. 8,730,67.
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant, and equipn (510,11) (826,09) (169,41Y
Net cash used by investing activit (510,11) (826,09)) (169,41)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayments of lor-term debt and notes payal (626,219 (612,92) (2,660,33))

Repurchase of Preferred Stc — (1,357,27) —

Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti 1,620,70 54,36 115,60(

Repurchase of Common Stc (122,207 — —

Payment of Preferred Stock divider (230,45() (364,62Y (876,56¢)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activi 641,83( (2,280,45) (3,421,30)
Net increase in cash and cash equival 290,05( 2,407,22. 5,139,95!
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of perioc 25,673,26 23,266,03 18,126,08

End of perioc $ 2596331 25,673,26 23,266,03
Supplemental schedule of cash flow informati

Interest paic $ 264,03: 279,69: 321,61(

Income taxes pai $ 3,47¢ 188,75« 16,00(
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities

Preferred dividends declared, not p $ 57,61 — —

Debt assumed for the purchase of molding mact $ — 534,98t —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

2.

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business of the Company

Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Companygs incorporated in Texas on May 9, 1994, and dssidevelops, manufactures,
markets safety syringes and other safety medicatymts for the healthcare profession. The Complaegan to develop |
manufacturing operations in 1995. The Companyanufacturing and administrative facilities avealted in Little Elm, Texas. T
Company'’s primary products with Notice of SubstainEquivalence to the FDA are the VanishP&ind.5mL insulin syringe; 1m
tuberculin, insulin, and allergy antigen syringdé® 0.5mL, 3mL, 5mL, and 10mL syringes; the smalhtbter tube adapter; the blc
collection tube holder; the allergy tray; the IVfetgt catheter; the Patient Safe  syringe; the Rat@afe® Luer Cap; and tt
VanishPoin® Blood Collection Set.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymvith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl(“GAAP”) require
Management to make estimates and assumptionsfthat the reported amounts of assets and lialslitiad disclosure of conting:
assets and liabilities at the date of the finanstatements and the reported amounts of revenuk®xgrenses during the report
period. Actual results could differ significanfipm those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egslvalents include unrestricted cash, money maeounts, and investments v
original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts receivable

The Company records trade receivables when revisntexognized. No product has been consigned stomers. The Comparyy’
allowance for doubtful accounts is primarily detéred by review of specific trade receivables. Thascounts that are doubtful
collection are included in the allowance. Thisyis@on is reviewed to determine the adequacy ofallmvance for doubtful accoun
Trade receivables are charged off when there imioty as to their being uncollectible. Trade reables are considered delinqu
when payment has not been made within contractsterm

The Company requires certain distributors to makeepayment prior to beginning production or shiptraf their order. Distributo
may apply such prepayments to their outstandingig@s or pay the invoice and continue to carryfodithae deposit for future ordel
Such amounts are included in Other accrued ligslion the Balance Sheets and are shown in Na¢hér Accrued Liabilities.

The Company records an allowance for estimatednetas a reduction to Accounts receivable and Gsakss. Historically, retur
have been immaterial.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragnith cost being determined using actual avecageé The Company compares
average cost to the market price and records therlvalue. Management considers such factorseaantount of inventory on ha
and in the distribution channel, estimated timesét such inventory, the shelf life of inventoryndacurrent market conditions wt
determining excess or obsolete inventories. Aruesis established for any excess or obsolete tovies or they may be written off.
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Property, plant, and equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at despenditures for maintenance and repairs are elaig operations as incurred. C
includes major expenditures for improvements arglacements which extend useful lives or increaggacity and interest cc
associated with significant capital additions. Bwr years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and #H Gompany capitalized inter
of approximately $36,596; $57,000; and $50,000in&ar losses from property disposals are includédcome.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated utliegstraight-line method over the following usdiués:

Production equipmel 3 to 13 year:
Office furniture and equipmel 3 to 10 year:
Buildings 39 years
Building improvement: 15 years
Automobiles 7 years

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of livegl assets using an assessment of the estimaigidcounted future cash flo
related to such assets. In the event that aseetfoand to be carried at amounts which are in exad estimated gross future ¢
flows, the assets will be adjusted for impairmenmtatlevel commensurate with fair value determinsthgi a discounted cash fli
analysis of the underlying assets.

During 2010, the Company recognized impairment gdsrof $365,295 on equipment designed in connedtitin research ar
development activities. The Company outsourcesnhprity of this production through overseas mantifrers. Minimal cash flow
if any, are expected to be generated by this eqeipmAccordingly, the Company reduced the carryiatye of this equipment to
estimated fair value of zero. The Compangianagement estimated the fair value of the ecqenpinased on guidance establishe
the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards BodféAGB”) Accounting Standari
Codification (“ASC”). In this instance, the Compyas management determined the impairment chargeiliging observable mark
data, a Level 2 input under the FASB ASC. A Levéabput would require quoted prices, which were anailable in this matter.

The Companys remaining property, plant, and equipment prirgacibnsists of buildings, land, assembly equipment sfyringes
molding machines, molds, office equipment, furrétuand fixtures. There has been no impairmentgehagainst the assem
equipment since the Company continues to manufa@uwignificant portion of 1mL and 3mL syringesttee Companys Little Elrr
facility which results in sufficient future castofs to recoup the net book value of all propertgnp and equipment.

Reclassifications

Contractual pricing allowances are presented inofints payable at December 31, 2012. Such allowanege netted agair
distributors’ individual balances and the resulting net balansese reflected in Accounts receivable or Accoungygble, a
appropriate, in prior years. Accounts receivablé Aocounts payable at December 31, 2011 have eacbased $158,275 to confc
with the current year’s presentation. This recfassion had no effect on stockholders’ equity esults of operations.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and consistaply of patents, a license agreement grantinglusive rights to use paten
technology, and trademarks which are amortizedguisia straight-line method over 17 years.
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Financial instruments

The Company estimates the fair market value ofnfine instruments through the use of public magk@tes, quotes from financ
institutions, and other available information. doént is required in interpreting data to develspineates of market value a
accordingly, amounts are not necessarily indicativ¢he amounts that could be realized in a curmatket exchange. Shdsrr
financial instruments, including cash and cashejants, accounts receivable, accounts payableptad liabilities, consist primari
of instruments without extended maturities, the failue of which, based on Managementstimates, equals their recorded val
The fair value of long-term liabilities, based omhgement’s estimates, approximates their repuetes:s.

Concentration risks

The Companys financial instruments exposed to concentratidregraxdit risk consist primarily of cash, cash e@lénts, and accoul
receivable. Cash balances, some of which exceddrdly insured limits, are maintained in financialstitutions; howeve
Management believes the institutions are of higdditrquality. The majority of accounts receivaate due from companies which
well-established entities. As a consequence, Mamagt considers any exposure from concentrationsedt risks to be limited.

The following table reflects our significant custersin 2012, 2011, and 2010:

Years Ended December

2012 2011 2010
Number of significant custome 3 4 3
Aggregate dollar amount of net sales to
significant customer $13.7 millior $16.2 millior $13.9 millior
Percentage of net sales to significant
customers 40.6% 50.6% 38.6%

Considering the current economic climate, the Cargpacreased its allowance for doubtful accountapgroximately $107 thousa
this year.

The Company manufactures syringes in Little ElnxaBeas well as utilizing manufacturers in Chindie Tompany purchases mos
its product components from single suppliers, idzlg needle adhesives and packaging materialsreTdre multiple sources of thi
materials. The Company obtained roughly 72.0%ofinished products in 2012 through Double Dov€hinese manufacturer. T
Company obtained approximately 67.1% and 64.1%sdiinished products from Double Dove in 2011 afd®@ respectively. In tl
event that the Company becomes unable to purchatemoduct from Double Dove, the Company woulddneefind an alterna
supplier for its 0.5mL insulin syringe, its 2mL, bmand 10mL syringes, and its autodisable syringe iacrease domestic product
for ImL and 3mL syringes.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and ofskbwnership passes to the customer, generallyr ighdpment. Under cert:
contracts, revenue is recorded on the basis of galee to distributors, less contractual pricintpwances. Contractual prici
allowances consist of: (i) rebates granted to iistors who provide tracking reports which show,oam other things, the facility tt
purchased the products, and (ii) a provision foimested contractual pricing allowances for produbts the Company has not recei
tracking reports. Rebates are recorded when isanddare applied against the customegceivable balance. Distributors recei
rebate for the difference between the Wholesaleuisitipn Cost and the appropriate contract priceedlected on a tracking rep
provided by the distributor to the Company. If protlis sold by a distributor to an entity that Imascontract, there is a standard re
(lower than a contracted rebate)
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given to the distributor. One of the purposeshaf tebate is to encourage distributors to subragking reports to the Company. -
provision for contractual pricing allowances isieved at the end of each quarter and adjustedHanges in levels of products
which there is no tracking report. Additionally,itibecomes clear that tracking reports will net firovided by individual distributol
the provision is further adjusted. The estimatedtiactual allowance is included in Accounts pagadohd deducted from revenue
the Statements of Operations. Accounts payableded estimated contractual allowances for $3,036a88®1 $2,170,764 for 2012 ¢
2011, respectively. The terms and conditions oftremtual pricing allowances are governed by comdraetween the Company anc
distributors. Revenue for shipments directly td-esers is recognized when title and risk of owngrgass from the Company. A
product shipped or distributed for evaluation pwgmis expensed.

Certain distributors have taken rebates to whigly thre not entitled, such as utilizing a rebatepfeducts not purchased directly fr
the Company. The Company has been in discussiatts the principal customers that claimed rmwmtractual rebates. Ma
customers said they have ceased the practicegimgsual claiming noneontractual rebates. Rebates can only be claimgoliocchase
made directly from the Company. The Company heaabéished a reserve for the collectability of thesa-contractual rebate amoun
The expense for the reserve is recorded in Operaipense, General and administrative. The resknveuch noncontractue
deductions is included in the allowance for doutdftcounts.

The Companys domestic return policy is set forth in its stawdRistribution Agreement. This policy providesatra customer mi
return incorrect shipments within 10 days followiagival at the distributos’ facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain a
authorization code from the Company and affix theecto the returned product. The Company willagmtept returned goods withot
returned goods authorization number. The Compaany mafund the customer’s money or replace the miodu

The Companys domestic return policy also generally providest t customer may return product that is oversickaverstockin
returns are limited to two times in each 12-monghiqul up to 1% of distributor’s total purchase obgucts for the prior 12aontt
period. All product overstocks and returns argestttio inspection and acceptance by the Company.

The Company’s international distribution agreemeetserally do not provide for any returns.

Marketing fees

In prior periods, Marketing fees payable to Abdatboratories (“Abbott")were included in current liabilities in the Balar8keets. |
connection with the settlement with Abbott, Marketifees payable recorded in previous periods weteaquired to be paid. T
reversal of this accrual is included in Litigatisettlements, net on the Statements of OperatioB810.

Litigation settlements

Proceeds from litigation settlements are recognizken realizable. Generally, realization is n@senably assured and expected
proceeds are collected. Pursuant to a settlengnetement among the Company, Abbott, and Hospica, (fHospira”), Hospire
delivered $6 million to the Company in the thirdageer of 2010. The Company reduced its litigatamitlements by $144,0
attributable to an unpaid Abbott invoice. Abbotsca waived its rights to any Series IV Class B Prefd Stock dividend:
Additionally, the Company granted Hospira an exglioneyear option to negotiate a licensing agreementcétain uses of tt
Patient Safé syringe, which option expired unexercised in JUWt2 The Company has received the $8.0 milliooogbayments
The Company recognizes proceeds from litigatiotlesaents, net of any associated royalty expense.

Income taxes

The Company evaluates tax positions taken or eggeict be taken in a tax return for recognitionhia financial statements basec
whether it is “more-likely-than-not” that a tax ftien will be sustained based
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upon the technical merits of the position. Measwest of the tax position is based upon the largasbunt of benefit that is grea
than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimatetlsetent.

The Company provides for deferred income taxeauhiaitilizing an asset and liability approach fimahcial accounting and report
based on the tax effects of differences betweerfitlamcial statement and tax bases of assets abditles, based on enacted r:
expected to be in effect when such differencesrsevin future periods. Deferred tax assets aredgieally reviewed for realizability
Under thenexisting tax law, companies were allowed to caaglbtaxable losses from either 2009 or 2010. Thea@2my utilized sorr
of its net operating loss carry forwards in 2018 paid Alternative Minimum Tax on its taxable incemThe Company has establis
a valuation allowance for its net deferred tax fagsefuture taxable income cannot be reasonablyreds Penalties and interest
uncertain tax positions are classified as incomedan the Statements of Operations.

Earnings per share

The Company computes basic earnings per share (fERSlividing net earnings for the period (adjusteddny cumulative dividen
for the period) by the weighted average numbermafimon shares outstanding during the period. OllEES includes the determing
of basic EPS and, in addition, reflects the dikteffect, if any, of the common stock deliverablespant to stock options or comn
stock issuable upon the conversion of convertibiiefgpred stock and convertible debt. The calcotatdf diluted EPS exclud
1,373,345 issued and outstanding stock optionsegaeidber 31, 2012 as their effect was antidilutivee potential dilution, if any,
shown on the following schedule:

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Net income (loss $ (4,132,89) $ 1,418,48 $ 2,400,69.
Preferred dividend requiremer (918,109 (964,04 (1,370,621
Effect of dilutive securities
Convertible debt interest and loan fees — (10,120) —
Earnings (loss) available to common shareholdées afsumed

conversions $ (5,051,000 $ 444 31! $ 1,030,07.
Average common shares outstanding 26,219,72 24,171,23 23,872,78
Dilutive stock equivalents from stock optic — 2,101,82! 2,376,09.
Shares issuable upon conversion of convertible debt — 81,72 —
Average common and common equivalent shares odistan

assuming dilutior 26,219,72 26,354,78 26,248,87.
Basic earnings per share $ (0.19% 0.0 $ 0.04
Diluted earnings per share $ (0.19 ¢ 0.0z $ 0.04

Shipping and handling costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling castsart of Cost of sales in the Statements of Gpesa
Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed agdhcu

Share-based compensation

The Company’s share-based payments are accountedify the fair value method. The Company recstagebased compensati
expense on a straight-line basis over the requssiteice period. The Company incurred the follgpséare-based compensation costs:
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Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Cost of sale: $ — 3 — $ 182,89:
Sales and marketir — — 78,34
Research and developmt — — 28,25¢
General and administrative — — 1,050,801

$ — % — $ 1,340,30I

All stock options were fully vested at June 30, @0therefore, all stock option expense was fulognized at June 30, 2010.

Recent Pronouncement

On October 1, 2012, the FASB issued Accounting ceas Update (“ASU”) 2012-0dechnical Corrections and Improvements. This
ASU makes certain incremental improvements to GSAP, including, among other revisions, conformammendments that ident
when the use of fair value should be linked todb#nition of fair value in ASC 820. The majority the amendments in ASU 2002-
were effective upon issuance and the more subgéaathendments that are subject to transition goeglane effective for fiscal peric
beginning after December 15, 2012. The adoptiothisf ASU did not have an impact on the Comparfiriancial position, results

operations, cash flows or financial statement dmales and the Company does not expect the futlmptian of the transitic
provisions of this ASU to have a material impactsoch items.

3. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011
Raw materials $ 1,692,13. $ 1,282,35
Finished goods 3,537,87. 5,213,49
5,230,00! 6,495,85.
Inventory reserve (239,759 (258,43
$ 4,990,25. $ 6,237,41

4. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant, and equipment consist of the Yoithy:

December 31

2012 2011
Land $ 261,89! $ 261,89:
Buildings and building improvemen 11,354,211 11,121,55
Production equipmet 15,612,80 15,550,22
Office furniture and equipmel 2,821,17 2,341,74
Construction in progres 731,25¢ 995,81(
Automobiles 102,32: 102,32:

30,883,66 30,373,54
Accumulated depreciation (18,984,01) (17,719,69)

$ 11,89965 $ 12,653,85

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decenibe2@12, 2011, and 2010 was $1,264,326; $1,267,ab8; $1,482,59
respectively.
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31,

2012 2011
License agreeme! $ — $ 500,00
Trademarks and patents 494,39¢ 508,74
494,39¢ 1,008,74.
Accumulated amortization (207,879 (678,619

$ 286,52( $ 330,12¢

In 1995, the Company entered into a license agreemith the Chief Executive Officer of the Compafoy the exclusive right 1
manufacture, market, and distribute products utiizautomated retraction technology, which agredrhaa been amended twice. 1
technology is the subject of various patents aridrmaapplications owned by such officer of the Camp The initial licensing fee
$500,000 was amortized over 17 years. The licagseement also provides for quarterly paymentsSffoaoyalty fee on gross sale
The royalty fee expense is recognized in the peanodghich it is earned. Royalty fees of $2,691,887,643,209; and $2,940,948
included in Cost of sales for the years ended Déeerdl, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. Rmgafiayable under this agreen
aggregated $129,107 and $122,939 at December 32, &0d 2011, respectively. Gross sales upon widghlties are based we
$53,837,732; $52,864,158; and $58,795,279 for 2221, and 2010, respectively. Royalties were péd on litigation proceeds, I
of legal fees, on a gross amount of $6.0 millior2@11. A small amount of royalties was paid onattigs from a licensing agreem
with a third party.

Amortization expense for the years ended DecembefB12, 2011, and 2010, was $71,532; $43,934; %4440, respectivel
Future amortization expense for the years 2013utiit®@017 is estimated to be $14,559 per year.

6. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Other accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31

2012 2011
Prepayments from customers $ 1,400,74C $ 869,334
Accrued professional fe¢ 162,969 134,790
Other accrued expenses 101,961 61,819
$ 1,665,67C $ 1,065,94:

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

December 31

2012 2011
Long-term debt consists of the followin
Loan from Lewisville State Bank, a division oftlinternational Bank. It has a 20 year amortize
and 10 year maturity from December 10, 2009. Tl lprovided funding for the expansior
the warehouse, additional office space, and a nemtrGlled Environment. The loan is sect
by the Compar’s land and buildings. The interest rate is 5.96€ $ 3,852,551 $ 3,979,12
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2012 2011

Note payable to Katie Petroleum. Interest accruedorame plus 1%, which was 4.25%
December 31, 2011 and 2010. Interest only was payabnthly through February 1, 2004.
original amount of the note of $3,000,000 was disted for presentation purposes by $299
for stock options issued in conjunction with théodand $412,500 for the intrinsic value ¢
beneficial conversion feature of the debt. BegignMWarch 1, 2004, the loan was payabl
equal installments of principal and interest (excémr changes in the interest rate)
approximately $37,000 and matured on September2812. Guaranteed by an offic
Approximately $163,736 of the principal payment wagsverted into 40,934 shares of Com
Stock as of March 1, 2006. Not otherwise collateeal. Convertible into Common Stock
$4.00 per share at the option of the holder. ThigeNvas paid in full in September 20 — 323,11¢

Note payable to Deutsche Leasing USA, Inc. Therésterate is 5.57%. The original amount of
note was $327,726 with a 36 month maturity endimgApril 2014. In May 2011, the lo
became payable in equal installments of principadl anterest of approximately $9,9
Collateralized by three molding machines. It hgsuechase option of $1.00 at the end of
term. 152,41! 259,54

Note payable to Deutsche Leasing USA, Inc. Therésterate is 5.57%. The original amount of

note was $207,260 with a 36 month maturity endimg November 2014. Beginni

December 2011, the loan became payable in equtdlliiments of principal and interest

approximately $6,300. Collateralized by a moldingcimne. It has a purchase option of $1.(
the end of the tern 136,36¢ 201,95t
4,141,29 4,763,73!

Less: current portion (315,086 (620,472
$ 3,826,211 $ 4,143,26

The fair value of long-term liabilities, based omiagement’s estimates, approximates their repueies.

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as afebwer 31, 2012, are as follows:

2013 $ 315,08¢
2014 247,06«
2015 149,74«
2016 159,18:
2017 169,21:
Thereafter 3,101,00!

$ 4,141,29

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In June 2010, Becton, Dickinson and Company (“Bfild an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appeals (tBetrt”) for the Federal CircL
appealing a final judgment entered on May 19, 2fatGhe Company and against BD¢ounterclaims in patent litigation. Such f
judgment ordered that the Company recover $5,000p00s prejudgment interest, and ordered a perntangmction for BD's 1mL
and 3mL Integra syringes until the expiration oftam patents. The permanent injunction was stégethe longer of the exhaustion
the appeal of the district court’s case or twehanths from May 19, 2010. In July 2011, a thjegge panel of the Court reversed
district court’s judgment that BD’s 3mL Integraiimiged the Company’s ‘224 patent afd¥7 patent. The Court affirmed the dist
court’s judgment that the 1mL Integra infringes tBempany’s ‘244 and ‘733 patents. The Court affionged the district court
judgment that the077 patent is not invalid for anticipation or obwsmess. The Company had petitioned for a rehedyngll the
judges of the Federal Circuit as to whether thedkudge panel properly construed the
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Company’s patent claim language in finding that3h&_ Integra did not infringe. The Compasypetition for rehearing by all of t
judges of the Federal Circuit was denied with twsseénts being issued. The Company filed a petftorcertiorari asking the Supre
Court to review the matter. That petition was ddnin January of 2013. The U.S. District Court tleg Eastern District of Texas
currently considering post-trial motions regardihg effect of the partial reversal without remanctee terms of the final judgment.

In May 2010, the Company and an offieesuit against BD in the U.S. District Court foetkastern District of Texas, Mars}
Division alleging violations of antitrust acts, $al advertising, product disparagement, tortiowerfiatence, and unfair competition \
reopened. The Company and an officer filed a S&#¢¢onended Complaint on July 23, 2010 setting fadditional detail regarding t
allegations of BDs illegal conduct. BD filed a motion to dismissdatine Court denied that motion in part and granted part
granting the Company the right to peead certain allegations by May 13, 2011. The gamy and an officer filed a Third Amenc
Complaint in May 2011, setting forth additional aietregarding the alleged illegal conduct by BDriall was initially set fa
February 2012. However, in January 2012 the maegreed to a continuance to allow the petitionctatiorari to be considered.
stated above, the petition was denied in JanuaB04B. A pretrial conference and trial settingsét for May 15, 2013 and it
currently believed that trial will proceed in thensmer of 2013.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holditgs, (“MDC”) sued the Company in the United States District Ctarrthe
Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Division,ially alleging that the Company is infringing twaJ patents of MDC (6,179,812 ¢
7,090,656) that are licensed to BD. BD and MDC seg@knctive relief and unspecified damages. Then@any counterclaimed f
declarations of nomfringement, invalidity, and unenforceability ohe asserted patents. The plaintiffs subsequemnbppa
allegations with regard to patent no. 7,090,656 tmedCompany subsequently dropped its countercl&msinenforceability of tr
asserted patents. The Court conducted a claimstraation hearing on September 25, 2008 and isgsi@hims construction order
November 14, 2008. The case has been stayed pemdiolution of the Company'’s first filed case agaBD described above.

Operating Leases
During 2010, the Company entered into a ranecellable operating lease for additional offipace. Rent expense under this leas

the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 26%0560,401; $59,195; and $3,495, respectivelyurEunnual minimum ren
payments as of December 31, 2012 are presented:belo

2013 $ 61,60
2014 62,81:
2015 59,96¢
2016 —

Total $ 184,38!

9. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consists of theofwlhg:

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Current tax provision (benefi
Federa $ 1,78t (29,070 $ (204,50
State 8,03 42,86° 28,45(
Total current provision (benefit) 9,81¢ 13,79° (176,05
Deferred tax provision (benefi
Federa — — —
State — — —

Total deferred tax provision (benefit) — — —
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2010
(176,05)

2012
9,81t $

2011
13,797 $

Total income tax provision (benefit) $

The Company recognized a net tax benefit due tadditional refund for net operating losses in 200#@igated by Alternativ
Minimum Tax in 2010.

The Company has $12,850,183 in tax benefits atalila to carryback losses for federal tax purposese loss carryforwards w
begin to expire in 2027 for federal tax purposess will begin to expire for state tax purposes i120

Deferred taxes are provided for those items redartelifferent periods for income tax and finanaigborting purposes. The tax effe
of temporary differences that give rise to sigrifit portions of the deferred tax assets and li#slare presented below:

December 31
2012 2011

Deferred tax asse

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 4,873,43. $ 3,372,99.

Accrued expenses and reser 1,165,65 1,118,67
Employee stock option expen 295,69¢ 682,81(
Inventory 319,83( 397,44¢
Non-employee stock option expense 15,54¢ 79,93¢

Deferred tax assets 6,670,16: 5,651,87.

Deferred tax liabilities

Property and equipment (631,109 (768,45))

Deferred tax liabilities (631,109 (768,45))

Net deferred assets 6,039,05. 4,883,411
Valuation allowance (6,039,059  (4,883,41)

Net deferred tax asse $

$

The valuation allowance increased $1,155,638 fa224hd decreased $559,266 for 2011.

A reconciliation of income taxes based on the felstatutory rate and the provision (benefit) focdme taxes is summarized

follows:

December 31

2012 2011 2010

Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State tax (benefit), net of federal (bene 2.6 2.6 2.8
Increase in valuation allowan (28.0 — —
Permanent difference 1.2 2.C 9.1
Return to accrual adjustmer — (2.9 (15.0
Alternative minimum ta — 3.4 5.8
Adjustment to temporary differences for stock opsi (11.0 — —
Release of valuation allowan— Net operating loss carryforwa (39.0 (45.2)
Other (0.9 (0.5 (0.5)

Effective tax (benefit) rate (0.2)% 1.C% (7.9%

The Company files income tax returns in the U.Slefal jurisdiction and in various state and locaisdictions. The Company’
federal income tax returns for all tax years endiedr after December 31, 2009, remain subject anéxation by the Internal Rever

Service. The Compang’state and local income tax returns are subjeekamination by the respective state and localaaitidss ove

various statutes of limitations, most ranging friimree to five years from the date of filing.

F-18




Table of Contents

10. EXCHANGE OF PREFERRED STOCK FOR COMMON STOCK AND CA SH

11.

On September 12, 2011, the Company commenced ftie 2Xchange Offer and also engaged in private psehwith three Prefen
Stockholders. As of December 31, 2011, Prefertedkbolders had tendered a total of 1,277,464 shair@referred Stock. A total
$1,357,275 was paid and 1,277,464 shares of Confatock were issued as consideration to these PeefeStockholders. The
Preferred Stockholders agreed to waive all unpaiidieinds in arrears associated with their tend&mederred Stock, which resultec
a waiver of a total of $3,592,659 in unpaid dividern arrears.

The 2011 Exchange Offer and private sales are suimadan the table below.

Number of Preferred Cash Number of Accrued Amount of
Stock Shares Outlay by Common Stock Dividends Annual
Tendered by Company Shares Tendered Eliminated Dividend
Preferred by Company Reduction
Stockholders
Series | Class B Stocl 40,50( | $ 60,75( 40,50( | $ —1$ 20,25(
Series Il Class B Stock 41,00( 123,00( 41,00( — 41,00(
Series IV Class B Stocl 10,00( 35,00( 10,00( 114,57! 10,00(
Series V Class B Stock 1,185,96. 1,138,52! 1,185,96. 3,478,08 379,50t
Total Class B Stock 1,277,46.1$ 1,357,27! 1,277,46-1$ 3,592,65 | $ 450,75¢

STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On July 10, 2012, the Company authorized a ComntockSepurchase plan structured to comply with Raleb5-1 and 10b8 unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Under the,ptlae Company purchased 67,102 shares in 2018vitistanding the terms of t
plan, the exact number of shares which may be seathin the future pursuant to the plan is diffical predict given the curre
market in the Company’s Common Stock. The plahexipire on August 1, 2014 at the latest.

Pursuant to the Certificates of Designation, Pesfees, Rights And Limitations of the Series| CBsand Series Il Class
Convertible Preferred Stock, the Company would k#hipited from purchasing its Common Stock whilgidénds are in arrear
Therefore, in order to continue the Common Stoglurehase plan, the Company plans to continue todpaglends on the Serie
Class B and Series Il Class B Preferred Stock dhspayments can be made in accordance with stateatal other contractt
obligations. The Company paid such dividends ia fbllowing amounts to Series| Class B and SdtligSlass B Preferre
Stockholders, respectively, on the following da%38,813 and $134,025 on July 31, 2012; $12,938%dd¢675 on October 22, 20
and $12,938 and $44,675 on January 21, 2013.

12. STOCK OPTION EXERCISE

On July 10, 2012, the chief executive officer of ilompany exercised a portion of his stock optibhe Company issued 2,000,!
shares of Common Stock to him at an exercise pfid®.81 (aggregate consideration of $1,620,000).
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13. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock
The Company is authorized to issue 5,000,000 staré&seferred Stock Class A with a par value of @udlar ($1.00) per shai
5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock Class B witaravalue of One Dollar ($1.00) per share; and G@I0 shares of Preferred St
Class C with a par value of One Dollar ($1.00) gfeare.

The Company has one class of Preferred Stock odiisigt Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (“ClBsStock”). The Class B Stoc
has five series: Series |, Series Il, Series k& IV, and Series V.

The Class B Stock has been allocated among Setiedlll, IV, and V in the amounts of 103,500; 1,780; 130,245; 542,500; a
46,607 shares, respectively as of December 31,.200h2 remaining 3,998,448 authorized shares havbeen assigned a series.

Series | Class B Stock

There were 103,500 shares of $1 par value Sef@ads B Stock outstanding at December 31, 2012284d. Holders of Serie
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasineual dividend of $0.50 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. In 2010, the Company paid $216,000dénds. In 2011, the Company paid $90,000 inddimds. In 2012, the Compe
paid $51,750 in dividends. At December 31, 201@ 2011, approximately $13,000 of dividends whichl hat been declared were
arrears. Such arrearage was paid on January 23, 20

Series | Class B Stock is redeemable after threesyleom the date of issuance at the option ofGbhepany at a price of $7.50

share, plus all unpaid dividends. Each share dgéSéClass B Stock may, at the option of the ldtotder, be converted to one shar
Common Stock after three years from the date afaisse or in the event the Company files an iniggjstration statement under
Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these terrosshares of Series | Class B Stock were converted@Common Stock in 2012
2011. In the event of voluntary or involuntarystikition, liquidation, or winding up of the Compatlders of Series | Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $6.25 per shdws, al unpaid dividends prior to any distributictesholders of Series Il Class B Stc
Series Il Class B Stock, Series IV Class B St&#¢jies V Class B Stock, or Common Stock.

Series |l Class B Stock

There were 178,700 shares of $1 par value Seriéfalis B Stock outstanding at December 31, 2012284d. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulasineual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. Holders of Series Il Class B Stock gathe have no voting rights until dividends are anrears and unpaid for twe
consecutive quarters. In such case, the holdeBenés Il Class B Stock have the right to ele@-iwird of the Board of Directors
the Company. In 2010, the Company paid $660,56@\idends. In 2011, the Company paid $274,628iwdends. In 2012, tt
Company paid $178,700 in dividends. At DecemberZil2 and 2011, approximately $45,000 of dividemdtsch had not bes
declared were in arrears. Such arrearage wasopaldnuary 21, 2013.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after thesas/from the date of issuance at the option oQtvapany at a price of $15.00
share plus all unpaid dividends. Each share ageéSé#rClass B Stock may, at the option of the lshmider, be converted to one shar
Common Stock after three years from the date afaisse or in the event the Company files an iniggjistration statement under
Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these terrosshrares of Series Il Class B Stock were convartedCommon Stock in 2012
2011. In the event of voluntary or involuntarystikition, liquidation, or winding up of the Compaimplders of Series Il Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shdus, all unpaid dividends, after distribution olalipns to holders of Series | Clas
Stock have been satisfied and prior to any didtiding to holders of Series Ill Class B Stock, Seté Class B Stock, Series V Clas
Stock, or Common Stock.

F-20




Table of Contents

Series |ll Class B Stock

There were 130,245 shares of $1 par value Seli€dks B Stock outstanding at December 31, 20122811. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulagineual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable gugriedeclared by the Board
Directors. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, appratéty $3,497,000 and $3,366,000, respectively,yfldnds which have not be
declared were in arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after tlyegses from the date of issuance at the option @fGbmpany at a price of $15.00
share, plus all unpaid dividends. Each share aéSdl Class B Stock may, at the option of theckholder, be converted to one st
of Common Stock after three years from the datesafance or in the event the Company files arainitigistration statement under
Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to these terrasshrares of Series Il Class B Stock were convem¢al Common Stock in 2012
2011. In the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutjdiquidation, or winding up of the Company, hakl®f Series Il Class
Stock then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 hares plus all unpaid dividends, after distributabiigations to Series | Class B St
and Series Il Class B Stock have been satisfiedpaiod to any distributions to holders of Series@lass B Stock, Series V Clas
Stock, or Common Stock.

Series |V Class B Stock

There were 542,500 shares of $1 par value Seri€dld¥s B Stock outstanding at December 31, 201228dd. Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulatineual dividend of $1.00 per share, payable qugrtérdeclared by the Board
Directors. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, appratéty $6,881,000 and $6,338,000, respectively,wfldnds which have not be
declared were in arrears.

Series IV Class B Stock is redeemable after thesgsyfrom the date of issuance at the option ohvapany at a price of $11.00
share plus all unpaid dividends. Each share oeSév Class B Stock may, at the option of the kimider any time subsequen
three years from date of issuance, be convertedin¢ share of Common Stock, or in the event thaf2my files an initial registratic
statement under the Securities Act of 1933. Putsteathese terms, rehares of Series IV Class B Stock were converted@ommoil
Stock in 2012 or 2011. In the event of voluntaryirvoluntary liquidation, dissolution, or windingp of the Company, holders
Series IV Class B Stock then outstanding are entitb receive liquidating distributions of $11.06r share, unpaid dividends a
distribution obligations to Series | Class B StoBkyies Il Class B Stock, and Series Il Class &csthave been satisfied and prio
any distribution to holders of Series V Class Bc&tor Common Stock.

Series V Class B Stock

There were 46,607 shares of $1 par value Seriea¥s@ Stock outstanding at December 31, 2012 &id.2Holders of Series
Class B Stock are entitled to receive a cumulatineual dividend of $0.32 per share, payable qugrtérdeclared by the Board
Directors. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, appreatefy $929,000 and $914,000, respectively, of dimds which have not be
declared were in arrears.

Series V Class B Stock is redeemable after twosyltam the date of issuance at the option of then@my at a price of $4.40 per st
plus all unpaid dividends. Each share of Serigdlass B Stock may, at the option of the stockhotdertime subsequent to the dat
issuance, be converted into Common Stock. Purdaahese terms, nehares of Series IV Class B Stock were converted@ommol
Stock in 2012 or 2011. In the event of voluntaryirvoluntary liquidation, dissolution, or windingp of the Company, holders
Series V Class B Stock then outstanding are edittiereceive liquidating distributions of $4.40 rare, plus unpaid dividends a
distribution obligations to Series | Class B StoSleries Il Class B Stock, Series Ill Class B Staukd Series IV Class B Stock h
been satisfied and prior to any distribution to tieéders of the Common Stock.
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Common stock

The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,000eshair no par value Common Stock, of which 27,252 ,d46d 25,318,700 sha
were outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 201pectsely. The Company has authorized a CommortkStepurchase pl:
structured to comply with Rules 10b5-1 and I@b-under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Unte plan, the Compa
purchased 67,102 shares in 2012. Such purchaaeessire recorded as treasury stock.

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a license agreement with the Exiefutive Officer of the Company. See Note 5.
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company exerdiagportion of his stock option in 2012. See Nifte

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 20112@hd, the Company paid $91,086; $96,787; and 815/@spectively, to a fam
member of its Chief Executive Officer as an empéogad consultant.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Coynpaid $20,350 to a Director's company for partitipg in clinical trials.

The Chief Executive Officer exchanged his Prefe@eatk shares for Common Stock and cash in theaHauarter of 2011 pursuant
the 2011 Exchange Offer on the same terms as Viiened to all Preferred Stockholders. He recei@6@®07 shares of Common St
and $95,843 in exchange for 5,000 shares of SBfi®seferred Stock and 81,607 shares of Serieseéfefred Stock, and he waive
total of $58,110 in unpaid dividends in arrearfie Tompanys Common Stock had a closing stock price of $1t3%&ember 4, 201
the expiration date of the 2011 Exchange Offer.

15. STOCK OPTIONS
Stock options

The Company has approved stock option plans fogthating of stock options to employees, Directarg] consultants. Options
the purchase of 3,100 shares of Common Stock remagtanding under the 1999 Stock Option Plan, wkecminated pursuant to
terms in 2009. Options for the purchase of 2,838.4hares of Common Stock have been issued unde20®8 Stock Option Ple
which authorized a total of 3,000,000 shares of @om Stock upon the exercise of stock options. d@dgtifor the purchase
2,433,981 shares under the 2008 Stock Option P&ae wutstanding as of December 31, 2012. Optionthe purchase of 1,000,(
shares of Common Stock remain outstanding undeption granted to Mr. Thomas J. Shaw.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee administbrglans and determines and/or recommends t@Btad exercise prices
which options are granted. All executive compensaincluding the granting of stock options, igetenined by the Compensation :
Benefits Committee. Shares issued upon exercisgptidns come from the Compasyauthorized but unissued Common Stock.
options vested over periods up to three years fiteendate of grant and generally expire ten yeaes #fie date of grant. Unves
options issued under the 2008 Stock Option Plairexpmediately after termination of employment.

Employee options

A summary of Director, officer, and employee optigranted and outstanding under the Plans is prezgtberlow:
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Outstanding at
beginning of periot
Granted
Exercisec
Forfeited

Outstanding at end of
period

Exercisable at end of
period

Weighted average fair
value of options
granted during peric

Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
5,433,59. $ 0.91 5,508,51. $ 0.91 5,721,521 $ 0.94
(2,000,86) (0.8)) (67,129 (0.8)) (142,714 (0.87)
(65,645 (2.29) (7,800 (0.85) (70,300 (3.09)
3,367,08. $ 0.9t 5,43359 $ 0.91 5,508,51. $ 0.91
3,367,08. $ 0.9t 543359 $ 0.91 5,508,51. $ 0.91
— 3 — — 3 — — 3 —

No options were issued in 2010, 2011, or 2012.

The following table summarizes information abouteBtor, officer, and employee options outstandindes the aforementioned pl:

at December 31, 2012

Non-employee options

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable

$ 8.6¢ 2,40( 0.4¢ 2,40(
$ 8.8 70C 1.3¢€ 70C
$ 1.3C 883,73t 5.8¢ 883,73t
$ 0.81 2,480,24. 6.54 2,480,24.

A summary of options outstanding during the yeadeel December 31 and held by non-employees idlas/fo
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Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at
beginning of periot 302,50 $ 5.4¢ 302,50 $ 5.4¢ 391,60( $ 6.52
Granted — — — — — —
Exercisec — — — — — —
Forfeited (232,50() (6.90) — — (89,100 (10.00)
Outstanding at end of
period 70,000 $ 0.81 302,500 $ 5.4¢ 302,500 $ 5.4¢
Exercisable at end of
period 70,000 $ 0.81 302,50 $ 5.4¢ 302,500 $ 5.4¢
Weighted average fair
value of options
granted during peric — ¢ — — $ — — 3 —

No options were issued in 2010, 2011, or 2012.

The following table summarizes information aboubsmnployee options outstanding under the aforemestignians at December :

2012:
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$ 0.81 70,00( 6.54 70,00(

The Company recorded $0; $0; and $1,340,300 ak-b@sed compensation expense in 2012, 2011, and &&xikctively. The tot
intrinsic value of options exercised was $220,288,626; and $124,221 in 2012, 2011, and 2010ertsely. The aggregate intrin
value of options outstanding and exercisable wibr@se prices lower than market price at DecerBier2012 was approximatt
$157,215. There is no compensation cost relatedevested stock options to be recognized inuharé.

Options Pricing Models — Assumptions

The expected life and forfeiture rate assumptiogrsbased on the vesting period for each optiontgrad expected exercise behav
The assumptions for expected volatility and dividigmeld are based on recent historical experieriRisk{ree interest rates are
using grant-date U.S. Treasury yield curves forsime periods as the expected term.

16. 401(k) PLAN
The Company implemented an employee savings aivément plan (the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that iseinded to be a tagualifiec
plan covering substantially all employees. Under terms of the 401(k) Plan, employees may elecbturibute up to 88% of the
compensation, or the statutory prescribed limiteés. The Company may, at its discretion, matohleyee contributions. In the th
quarter of 2009, the Company discontinued its matchontributions until further notice.
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17.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

2012 2011 2010

U.S. sales $ 25,363,81 $ 26,655,78 $ 29,577,05
North and South America sales (excluding U 4,668,55! 4,736,35! 5,597,98!
Other international sales 3,612,13 710,15¢ 1,044,52
Total sales $ 33,644,50 $ 32,102,29 $ 36,219,56
Long-lived asset:

u.s. $ 11,679,59 $ 12,412,50 $ 12,297,94

International $ 220,05¢ $ 241,35: % 262,65(

The Company does not operate in separate reporsgiglments. The Company has minimal Itimgel assets in foreign countrie
Shipments to international customers generally irecuprepayment either by wire transfer or anvismable confirmed letter of cred
The Company does extend credit to internationatornsrs on some occasions depending upon certagriariincluding, but ne
limited to, the credit worthiness of the customiéie stability of the country, banking restrictioras)d the size of the order.
transactions are in U.S. currency.

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA - UNAUDITED
The selected quarterly financial data for the migiended December 31, 2012 and 2011, have beeed&om the Company’s
unaudited financial statements and include allstdjents, consisting only of normal recurring adjpestts, necessary for a fair
presentation of the results of the interim periods.

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2012
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, net $ 7,430 $ 8,72¢ $ 9,44: % 8,04:
Cost of sales 4,59( 5,397 6,09( 6,391
Gross profit 2,84( 3,331 3,35¢ 1,651
Total operating expenses 3,48¢ 3,86z 3,56¢ 4,20z
Loss from operations (64€) (531) (21)) (2,55))
Interest and other incon 12 11 11 13
Interest expense, n (72 (70 (68) (20
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 8 14 4 (17)
Net loss (714) (604) (272) (2,54
Preferred stock dividend requirements (230) (230) (230 (230
Loss applicable to common shareholders $ (944 $ (8349 $ (502) $ (2,770
Basic loss per share $ (0.04) $ (0.09) $ (0.02) $ (0.10
Diluted loss per share $ (0.04 $ (0.0%9) $ (0.02) $ (0.10)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 25,318,70 25,318,70 26,972,81 27,268,69
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 25,318,70 25,318,70 26,972,81 27,268,69
Gross profit margin 38.2Y% 38.2% 35.5Y% 20.5Y%
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(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2011
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Sales, net $ 9,74¢ 3 7,97¢ 3 8,271 $ 6,10¢
Cost of sales 6,457 4,84( 4,881 5,021
Gross profit 3,291 3,13¢ 3,39( 1,083
Total operating expenses 3,391 4,124 3,41¢ 4,06:
Income (loss) from operations (100 (98¢) (26) (2,970
Interest and other incon 16 18 15 14
Interest expense, n (57 (66) (63) (56)
Litigation settlements, ni 1,90(C 1,90C 1,90( —
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 35 17 (2) (37)
Net income (loss 1,72¢ 847 1,82¢ (2,98))
Preferred stock dividend requirements (342) (342) (342) (230
Earnings (loss) applicable to common

shareholder $ 1,38 $ 50t $ 1,48¢ $ (3,21))
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.0¢6 $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢6 $ (0.17)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 0.0 $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢e $ (0.1%)
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 23,986,11 24,004,11 24,027,05 24,667,66
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 26,664,59 26,189,07 25,950,80 24.667,66
Gross profit margin 33.8% 39.3% 41.0% 17.8%

Major variances for 2012 compared to 2011 are dubé receipt of option payments from Hospira id 2(
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securitiehaixge Act of 1934 (the “Exchange ActNlanagement, with the participation
our President, Chairman, and Chief Executive Offiddomas J. Shaw (the “CEO"and our Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
Douglas W. Cowan (the “CFO"gcting in their capacities as our principal exeatind financial officers, evaluated the effecte®sof oL
disclosure controls and procedures, as defineduie R3ai15(e) under the Exchange Act. The term disclosorgrols and procedures me
controls and other procedures that are designedduore that information required to be disclosedi®yn our periodic reports is: i) record
processed, summarized, and reported within the fiere@ds specified in the Securities and Exchange@ission’s (the “SEC”yules ani
forms; and ii) accumulated and communicated to Management, including our principal executive amghgipal financial officers, ¢
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguieed disclosure. Based upon this evaluation,@E and CFO concluded that, a:
December 31, 2012, our disclosure controls andgohoes were effective.

Managemens Annual Report on Internal Control over Finan&laborting

Management is responsibfer establishing and maintaining adequate inteomaitrol over our financial reporting as definet
Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act. The term internalta@nover financial reporting means a process desigby, or under ti
supervision of, our principal executive and priraifinancial officers and effected by our Board Difrectors, Management and ot
personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regathin reliability of financial reporting and theeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles and includes those fsiand procedures that: (i) pertain tc
maintenance of records that in reasonable detailrately and fairly reflect our transactions ansbdiitions of assets; (ii) provide reason
assurance that our transactions are recorded asswy to permit preparation of financial statemémtaccordance with generally acce|
accounting principles, and that our receipts anpgeesitures are being made only in accordance withagizations of Management ¢
Directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assuraegarding prevention or timely detection of unauittent acquisition, use, or disposition of
assets that could have a material effect on oanfiral statements. Management used tkenal Control - Integrated Framework issued b
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theativay Commission to evaluate the effectivenessupfinternal control over financ
reporting as required by paragraph (c) of Rule 13ainder the Exchange Act. Management, with théggeation of our CEO and CF
concluded that our internal control over finanagborting as of December 31, 2012, was effectiMe. material weaknesses in our inte
control over financial reporting were identified Byanagement.

Our Management, including the CEO and CFO, doesrpéct that our disclosure controls and procedaresur internal contr
over financial reporting will prevent or detect alirors and all instances of fraud. A control sgst no matter how well designed
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absassrirrance that the control system’s objectivideimet.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repagrtin

There have been no changes during the fourth quaft2012 or subsequent to December 31, 2012 inimternal control ove
financial reporting or in any other factor that hasterially affected or is reasonably likely to evélly affect our internal control ov
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
The following table sets forth information concegpiour Directors, executives, and certain of ognigicant employees as of the d

of this report. Our Board of Directors currentiynsists of a total of seven (7) members, threen@nbers of which are Class 1 Directors
four (4) of which are Class 2 Directors which sefivetwo-year terms.

Term as
Director
Name Age Position Expires
EXECUTIVES
Thomas J. Sha 62 Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer, ahais€ 2 Directo 2014
Douglas W. Cowan 69 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasuferincipal Accountin 2014
Officer, and Class 2 Directt
Russell B. Kuhimai 59 Vice President, Sale N/A
Michele M. Larios 46 Vice President, General Counsel, and Secre N/A
Steven R. Wisnhe 55 Executive Vice President, Engineering & Productm Class 1 Direct 2013
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Marco Laterz: 65 Class 1 Directo 2013
Amy Mack 45 Class 1 Directo 2013
Walter O. Bigby, Jr 48 Class 2 Directo 2014
Clarence Zierhu 84 Class 2 Directo 2014
SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Kathryn M. Duesma 50 Executive Director, Global Heal N/A
Lawrence G. Salern 52 Director of Operation N/A
Shayne Blythe 44 Director of Sales and Marketing Logisti N/A
John W. Fort Il 44 Director of Accounting N/A
James A. Hoove 65 Director of Quality Assuranc N/A
R. John Mada 52 Production Manage N/A
Judy Ni Zhu 54 Research and Development Mana N/A

Executives

Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, has served as Chaimintire Board, President, Chief Executive Officend Director since o
inception. We believe it is appropriate for Mr.a@hto continue to serve as a Director and as thter@lan of the Board because of his ¢
knowledge of the strengths and weaknesses of amdupts (as their primary inventor) and of the Comypéas its Founder). Further,
strategic knowledge of the Company and its competignvironment arising from his ongoing servicesita CEO is vital to the succes:
supervision of the Company by the Board of DirextoFinally, Mr. Shaws educational background in both Engineering andoAnting i
helpful to Board deliberations. In addition to hdsties overseeing our Management, he continudsad our design team in prod
development of other medical safety devices thdiz&it among other things, his unique patentedtiéit ring technology. Mr. Shaw F
extensive experience in industrial product desigd bas developed several solutions to complicatechamical engineering challenges.
has been granted multiple patents and has addif@tents pending.

Douglas W. Cowan is a Vice President and our CRiréincial Officer, Treasurer, Principal Accountifigficer, and a Directol
Mr. Cowan joined us as Chief Financial Officer amds elected to the Board of Directors in 1999. hebeve it is appropriate Mr. Cow
continue to serve as a Director due to his levaheblvement in the financial state of the Compday its CFO) as well as his lead roli
supervising all internal control and disclosure tcoinprocedures and statements. He also servéiseagrimary contact for investors wh
enables him
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to bring their concerns to the Board on appropriapics as they arise. His expertise as a CPAeapérience as the CompagsyCFO allov
him to guide the Board, upon request, with regar@intancial matters. He is responsible for ougfinial, accounting, risk management,
forecasting functions.

Russell B. Kuhiman joined us in February 1997 andur Vice President, Sales. Mr. Kuhlman is resfima for management of t
sales force and liaison with GPOs and productitrgifor our sales organization, as well as distidou Mr. Kuhlmans efforts with us hay
resulted in bringing onboard Specialty Distributorgfluencing legislation, and educating influehtiealthcare representatives about
benefits of our product line. Mr. Kuhlman is resigel throughout the industry and is a main contabto the safety effort in this country.

Michele M. Larios joined us in February 1998 andently serves as our Vice President, General Galuaad Secretary. Ms. Lar
is responsible for our legal and legislative, hummasource, and regulatory functions. In additionwtorking on all legal matters, b
internally and with outside counsel, Ms. Larios mé&s work on any pertinent legislative issuesadinglevant regulatory matters.

Steven R. Wisner joined us in October 1999 as Biexlice President, Engineering and Production and Director. We believe
is appropriate that Mr. Wisner continue to serveaaBirector due to his extensive experience in afi@mal management. His role
overseeing all engineering, production, and foredgtes allows him to provide timely and insightfulidance regarding the effect of Ba
decisions on the Company’s abilities to meet italgoMr. Wisners responsibilities include the management of ergging, productior
Chinese operations, quality assurance, informagohnology, and international sales. Mr. Wisnes &etensive experience in product des
development, and manufacturing.

Independent Directors

Marco Laterza joined us as a Director effective@flarch 22, 2005. We believe it is appropriate Materza continue to serve ¢
Director because of his skills as a CPA in actikecpce as well as his decades of experience iisimdvindividuals and entities with regarc
corporate planning and financial issues. Suclissiid experience provide a valuable contributiohis role as the designated financial e»
on the Audit Committee as well as provide valuahblependent accounting advice to the Board. Sii8&8, Mr. Laterza has owned ¢
operated a public accounting practice. His prachiludes corporate, partnership and individughtian, compilation/review of financi
statements, financial planning, business consyltargl trusts and estates. From 2004 to the préderitaterza has also served as
Treasurer for EZ Blue Software Corporation, a pevaoftware company. Since 2009, Mr. Laterza hawesl as Vice President
SpectraComp, Corp., a private holding company.nifeoly, Mr. Laterza was employed in a number of pmss from 1977 to 1985 with
Paso Natural Gas Company eventually serving d3ilestor of Accounting.

Amy Mack joined us as a Director on November 19)720We believe it is appropriate that Ms. Macktewre as a Board memt
due both to her experience as a nurse (the prinegayl user of our products) as well as her expegein running her own company. Si
April of 2000, she has been the Secretary of Er¢affi & Associates, a nursing agency, and she deagethe Chief Nursing Officer
EmergiStaff & Associates from 2000 to 2010. Frod®2 to 2010, she was the owner and Aesthetics Ngpseialist for Spa 02 & Medic
Aesthetics. Ms. Mack has served as an emergercy murse in various emergency rooms throughoui8arears as a nurse.

Clarence Zierhut has served on our Board of Dirscsince April 1996. We believe it is appropriéde Mr. Zierhut to continue 1
serve as a Director primarily due to his lifetinfeegperience in conception and development of imtioe products as well as his experie
in adapting such products to address mass produddues. During his professional career, Mr.lierhas created over 3,000 prot
designs for more than 350 companies worldwidejritually every field of manufacturing, and has wmiany international awards for des
excellence. His clients have included Johnson i8ndon, Abbott, Gould, and McDonnell Douglas.

Walter O. Bigby, Jr. has served on our Board okBliors since July 2012. We believe it is apprderiar Mr. Bigby to continue
serve as a Director due to his experience in owaitdjoperating healthcare-related businessesBilgloy’s experience includes ownershij
several small businesses, including hospitals,imyiisomes, commercial real estate, and office eqaid providers. Mr. Bigby has owr
and operated Bastrop Rehabilitation Hospital, &@d-2-location rehabilitation hospital in Louisiasace 2001. He is currently a
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minority interest owner in several nursing homed.auisiana. In 1995, Mr. Bigby sold his home hieadtgency to Columbia HCA a
remained a contract employee of the company (Hajtisith, Inc.) for three years developing other bdmalth markets. Mr. Bigby has o
a decade of experience operating healthcare bssiad®avily regulated by Federal agencies andxpasience with Medicare and Medicaid.

Significant Employees

Kathryn M. Duesman, RN, joined us in 1996 and autyeserves as the Executive Director, Global HealBhe provides clinic
expertise on existing products as well as thoggeirelopment. She has been instrumental in deveddapaining and marketing materials
has spoken and been published on safety issuesDidsman works with international agencies to mienthe use of safe technologie
developing countries.

Lawrence G. Salerno has been employed with us si8®& and has served as Director of Operationsufosince 1998. He
responsible for the manufacture of all our produats well as all product development and procesgldpment projects. In addition,
supervises all aspects of the construction andrestpa of our facilities in Little EIm, Texas. Ms8alerno is the brother of a 5% sharehc
who ceased to be a 10% shareholder in 2008.

Shayne Blythe has been with us since 2001 andri®wactor of Sales and Marketing Logistics. Skedsponsible for developi
and implementing strategic directions, objectivesmprehensive sales and marketing plans, and pnsgrdn addition, she directs ¢
oversees all aspects of the distribution procedscastomer service policies in order to monitor arantain customer satisfaction.

John W. Fort Ill is our Director of Accounting. Mrort joined us in March of 2000 as a FinanciabAmst and has served as
Director of Accounting since October of 2002. Higmary responsibilities include managing the daylay operations of the Accounting ¢
Finance Department and coordination of the annudits, and interim reviews by our independent antants, as well as our cost accoun
and forecasting functions.

James A. Hoover joined us in February 1996 andursirector of Quality Assurance. Prior to his bedng Director of Qualit
Assurance he was Production Manager. He is re@igenfor our quality assurance functions. Mr. Hepowhas also developed ¢
implemented FDA required procedures and has beetvied in the FDA inspection process.

R. John Maday joined us in July 1999 and is oudBcton Manager. He is responsible for supervisibrthe production of ol

products. Prior to becoming Production ManagerJanuary 1, 2005, he served as our Production GeSegervisor. Mr. Maday h
extensive manufacturing experience in both clagsdl 11l medical devices.

Judy Ni Zhu joined us in 1995 and is our ReseanthZevelopment Manager. Her primary focus is on peoduct development a
improvement of current products. Prior to joining, Ms. Zhu worked as a design engineer with Mav&bn the original 3mL syringe a
other SBIR grant projects.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS

There are no family relationships among the ab@rsqgns except as set forth above.
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES

No Directors hold directorships in reporting comigan
INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None of the above persons or any business in which person was an executive officer have beeriiegian a bankruptcy petitio
been subject to a criminal proceeding (excludiaffitr violations and other minor offenses), beehjsct to any order enjoining or suspent
their involvement in any type of business, or bganty to an alleged violation of a securities lagmmodities law, law or regulati

respecting financial institutions or
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insurance companies, law or regulation prohibitmail or wire fraud, or rules of any organizatioratthas disciplinary authority over
members.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMRINCE

Section 16 of the Exchange Act requires our Dinesstexecutive officers, and persons who own moaa tt0% of a registered cli
of our equity securities to file with the SEC ialtireports of beneficial ownership (Form 3) andorép of changes in beneficial owners
(Forms 4 and 5) of our Common Stock and our othyeitg securities. Officers, Directors, and gredham 10% shareholders are require
the SECS regulations to furnish us with copies of all 8attl6(a) reports they file. Based on our revievihaf forms submitted to us dur
and with respect to its most recent fiscal yedmfabur Directors, executive officers, and 10%rstmlders filed all reports timely.

CODE OF ETHICS

Effective as of March 9, 2004, we adopted a codetloits that applies to all employees, including, ot limited to, our princip
executive and financial officers. Our Code of Biesis Conduct and Ethics is designed to deter waingdnd to promote:

1. Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethicahdiing of actual or apparent conflicts of intesebetwee
personal and professional relationsh

2. Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabkldisure in reports and documents that we file vathsubmit tc
the SEC and in our other public communicatic

3. Compliance with applicable governmental laws, rugesl regulations

4, The prompt, internal reporting of violations of tbede to an appropriate person or persons idedhfifieche code
and

5. Accountability for adherence to the co

A copy of the code, as amended in 2009, is incatgorherein as Exhibit No. 14We have posted a copy of the code on our we
at www.vanishpoint.com/investor.asp. Please follihe link to “Governance” then follow the link taCharters,” then click on RVP
Corporate Code of ConductAny amendment to this code or waiver of its appiarato the principal executive officer, principiahancia
officer, principal accounting officer, or contraller similar person shall be disclosed to investyrsneans of a Form B-filing with the SEC.
We will provide to any person without charge, upequest, a copy of such code of ethics. Such sguhould be submitted in writing
Mr. Douglas W. Cowan at 511 Lobo Lane, P.O. Bokiflle EIm, Texas 75068-0009.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
We have a separatetiesignated standing Audit Committee establisheacoordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the ExchaAgt
consisting of Clarence Zierhut, Marco Laterza, &dditer O. Bigby, Jr. Each of the members of thedifB@Committee is independent

determined by the NYSE MKT rules.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that we lzveast one financial expert serving on the A@immittee. Mr. Marco Later.
serves as our designated Audit Committee Finarieiglert. Mr. Laterza is independent as definedAadit Committee members by 1
listing standards of the NYSE MKT.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Objectives of Our Compensation Plan
Our executive officer compensation program (therfpensation Program’iy based on the belief that competitive compensat
essential to attract, retain, motivate, and rewdgtily qualified and industrious executive officei®ur Compensation Program is intende
accomplish the following:
attract and retain highly talented and productixecetive officers;
provide incentives and rewards for superior perfomoe by the executive officers; and
align the interests of executive officers with thierests of our stockholders.
What the Compensation Program Is Designed to Award
Our Compensation Program is designed to awardsagibrior long-term performance by our executivécefs and their loyalty.

Summary of Each Element of Compensation

To achieve these objectives, the Compensation ameéfitss Committee has approved an executive oftioenpensation program tl
consists of four basic components:

base salary;

short-term incentive compensation in the form affrchonuses;

periodic long-term incentive compensation in therfof stock options; and

medical, life, and benefit programs (which are galte available on the same terms to all employees)
Why We Choose to Pay Each Element of Our Compensati Program
Base Salary

We choose to pay a significant component of our mamsation in base salary due to the fact that mané&ial performance
constrained by the monopolistic activities of BDntil such time as we believe that we have accesthe market, we believe that il
appropriate to weigh our Compensation Program heawvfavor of base salaries rather than in inoemtiompensation.
Cash Bonuses

From time to time and when our cash reserves allee, grant cash bonuses in order to reward sigmificfforts or th
accomplishment of short term goals. The Compemsatnd Benefits Committee last granted such bonins2810. Prior to 2010, the i
bonuses were granted in 2003.
Long-Term Incentives: Stock Options

Long-term incentives are provided through grants oflstimtions. The grants are designed to align tterésts of executive office
with those of stockholders and to provide each atvee officer with a significant incentive to mareffom the perspective of an owner v

an equity stake in the Company.
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How We Determine the Amount or Formula for Paymentin Light of Our Objectives

Executive compensation remains the same until tliera review of such compensation by the Compemsatind Benefit
Committee. Compensation, other than that of theefCxecutive Officer, has generally not been rexd annually. Under the terms
Mr. Shaw’s employment agreement, his compensasioeviewed annually.

Base Salary

The base salary for each of our executive offidgersubjectively determined primarily on the basfstlee following factors
experience, individual performance, contributionoter performance, level of responsibility, dutiesldunctions, salary levels in effect
comparable positions within and without our indystind internal base salary comparability constitema. However, salaries can alsc
affected by our long-term needs.

These base salaries are reviewed periodically amdba adjusted based upon the factors discussbé frevious paragraph, as v
as upon individual performance during the previfissal year, changes in the duties, responsitsliiad functions of the executive offic
and general changes in the compensation peer gnowhich we compete for executive talent. The treéaweight given to each of the
factors in the Compensation and Benefits Commategecommendation differs from individual to indival, as the Compensation
Benefits Committee deems appropriate.

Beginning August 1, 2009, all employees above tatesalary level had their salaries reduced by 1@®4lary reductions remain
place for executive officers, but all other empleyaffected by the salary reduction had their Esancreased by the amount of the reduc
effective August 6, 2012. However, Mr. ShavEmployment Agreement provides salary is autoraljiincreased by the percentage incr
in the consumer price index (“CPI”) from the praxsoyear. The Compensation and Benefits Commite&ldd to increase Mr. Shassalar
(which has also been cut by 10%) by $7,623 oveR0i salary for 2013.

Cash Bonuses

The bonuses, when paid, are paid on a discretiobasys as determined by the Compensation and Ber@éfimmittee. Factc
considered by the Compensation and Benefits Comeiiclude personal performance, level of respditgiband the factors used
determination of base salary as stated above, ewdthpa greater focus on the prior fiscal yeaheTCompensation and Benefits Comm
also considers our need to retain cash in decidimgther to grant cash bonuses.

Long-Term Incentive: Stock Options

We have issued stock options to our employees fiorm to time and may do so in the future. We ditlissue any stock options
2012. Options are generally granted to regulastiinle employees and officers.

If stock options are to be issued, Management pespa proposal to the Compensation and Benefitsn@ittee. Considerations
Management in its initial proposal in determinings@itable aggregate fair market value of optionsb¢ogranted include our financ
condition, the number of options already outstagdiand the benefit to the naxecutive officer employees. The proposal incl
information relating to the expected expense ohgyrants to be recognized by us, the approximateben of options to be issued, the nun
of options currently outstanding, the employeesdancluded, the amount of stock currently outsitagndand the method under which
options would be awarded.

Once the dollar amount of options to be grantedpigroved by the Compensation and Benefits Commiltmagement begi
determining the aggregate number of shares underiyptions that can be granted under such appfbaakd on the fair value of an opt
for the purchase of one underlying share). Fadtmisided in the determination of the value of gti@n grant for the purchase of one sl
include current market price of the Company’s stabk proposed exercise price, the proposed eiguirdate, the volatility of the Comparsy’
stock, and the risk free rate. We may retain dependent outside consultant to determine suclevdhluthe past we
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have utilized the Blaclscholes model as well as the binomial model, butag use other methods in the future as more apptepmethod
are developed.

Management provides the Compensation and Bendfitsndittee with a proposal regarding option grantexecutive officers. If tf
recommendation is acceptable, the committee gthateptions. If the committee feels changes anétatk it grants options on its own terr

With regard to many past grants, after the aggeegamber of shares underlying the options to batgdawas determined, °
allocated the options to our various departmenisgua factor based on their annual compensatioeditheir performance rating. 1
individual employee’s allocation factor was the rauator of a fraction. The denominator was the depent’'s sum of all factors (annt
compensation times performance ratings of all thgibde employees). The resulting fraction was tiplied by the stock options to
awarded to determine the employeéndividual portion of the aggregate approved i Future grants may be based on the val
contributions to the Company and not necessaritgyant to any formula.

The allocation may be further reviewed by each depant's management if they believed certain employeeg wet awarded
appropriate number of options. Management wouldican any suggestions.

Each stock option grant to employees allows theleyeg to acquire shares of Common Stock at a fpasgk per share (never I
than the closing stock price of the Common Stockhendate of grant) for a fixed period (usually jears). With regard to grants priol
2009, each option generally became exercisable dftee years, contingent upon the employesdntinued employment with us.
exceptions include options issued to Officers anmeddors pursuant to the 2008 option exchange offdiich vested immediately for non-
employee Directors and after one year for employmetuding employee Directors) and options grarited009 which vested in one year
executive officers and immediately for nemployee Directors. Accordingly, generally stogition grants will provide a return to f
employee only if the employee remains employed$duwring the vesting period, and then only if therket price of the underlying Comn
Stock appreciates. Future grants may vest oveodes or longer period.

How Each Compensation Element and Decision Fits IntOverall Compensation Objectives

Our Compensation Program is intended to accompiisifollowing objectives: 1) attract and retain Hligtalented and producti
executive officers; 2) provide incentives and redgafior superior performance by the executive officand 3) align the interests of execu
officers with the interests of our stockholders.

We pay the bulk of our compensation in the formcaéh compensation due to the fact that competingniranticompetitive
environment means that results will not always bmmensurate with performance. We believe thafptdormance of our executives
been outstanding. We believe this is especiallg tgiven the anttompetitive environment in which we operate. Basusire grante
occasionally to recognize extraordinary performanoé/or extraordinary job requirements. We beliévis approach and weighting
compensation elements is necessary to retain @auéixe talent due to the environment in which \werate.

Periodically, we grant stock options with the iritéo provide both an incentive and reward to exgeubfficers for longtermr
performance and to align the interests of our egg#g with that of the shareholders.

Shareholder Advisory Votes

As a smaller reporting company, we have not yembeguired to solicit shareholder advisory voteshwiespect to executi
compensation. We will solicit such votes at thiayg annual shareholders’ meeting.

Allocation Between Long-Term/Current and Between Cah/Non-Cash Compensation

All of our long-term compensation consists of reash compensation in the form of stock options. B&keve that the granting
stock options incentivizes executives to maximiae longterm strengths as well as our stock price. Howevecause we are operating
monopolistic environment and our stock price htkelrelationship with our performance, the mogngicant component of compensatiol
base salary and not stock
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options. Management is incentivized to maximizarsholder value and will be rewarded if they do stmwever, a significant base sal
enables us to retain this competent Managementtdebp current inability to provide valuable eguitcentives.

How Determinations Are Made as to When Awards Are Ganted

Generally, option awards to executive officers gnanted by the Compensation and Benefits Comméitekfor others are grantec
the discretion of the Board after recommendatiorihef Compensation and Benefits Committee or onctiramittees own initiative. N
awards are granted if the Compensation and Ber@fitsmittee does not support a recommendation.

Unfortunately, our stock price does not always reesc expected to our achievements. Accordinglytina¢s, options have be
granted to aid in retaining competent and expeédrexecutives without regard to the then curresttksprice. However, such options alw
have exercise prices that are at or above fair edasddue on the date of grant.

In addition, there is no relationship between tagedf grant of options and our possession of ri@teonpublic information (i.e
we grant options without regard to whether or netaxe in possession of material nmmblic information). Furthermore, it is our poligyith
regard to options that (although the options cdndaxercised) the underlying shares could not likisto the market while the executive \
in possession of material nguiblic information under our insider trading policyAccordingly, we believe that there is minimaikriof the
executive profiting from such material nonpublifoirmation.

What Specific Items of Corporate Performance Are Taen Into Account in Setting Compensation Policiesrad Making Compensatior
Decisions

Cash reserves as well as trends in sales and amrestaken into account when considering the adiligabf increasing base salar
or granting cash bonuses. However, no specifinstef corporate performance are taken into acciousetting executive compensation
to the fact that we compete in a monopolistic esmwinent and, therefore, significant achievementesfgpmance is not always correlated \
corporate results. At such times that any of thieetors make it inadvisable to increase salariegrant bonuses as advisable, 1
consideration is given to increasing option awdadting into account the value of prior option avgard

Awards are granted on the basis of historical perémce. Accordingly, there is no discretion tordi@the awards once granted.
How Compensation Reflects Individual Performance

Executive compensation is not based on the indalidicontribution to specific, quantitative corporatgectives due to the fact tl
we compete in a monopolistic environment. Howetteg, individuals contribution to our performance is determinedspant to qualitativ
factors as discussed above under “How We Deterthmmémount or Formula for Payment in Light of Oupj€ctives.”

Factors We Consider in Determining to Change Compesation Materially

We consider our cash position, current liquidignls, and the short-term and Iaiegm needs for cash reserves (especially in li€
the hostile environment in which we operate) whesluating whether we can change compensation ra#yeait a given time.

On an individual-by-individual basis, we also catesithe value of past option compensation, the etitngeness of that individual’
base salary, and that individual’s contributiorots goals.

The Impact of the Accounting and Tax Treatments oDur Types of Compensation

Stock options granted to executives and other eyeplo are expensed for accounting purposes und&tole Compensation Toj
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board AccmgnStandards Codification. We
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expense all of our option costs as we do the afssslaries and any periodic bonuses. Accordinidg,impact of tax treatment of varic
compensation forms does not impact our compensdggisions. Stock option expense is not recogniiaethx purposes, except in the ¢
of non-qualified stock options. For non-qualifigdck options, the intrinsic value of the optiomésognized when the option is exercised.
Our Policy Regarding Stock Ownership and Hedging

We do not have a policy regarding stock ownerslyigxecutive officers. We prohibit certain stocrtsactions by employees
Directors, including:

1. Purchases and sales of our stodkinvit six month period;
2. Short sales of our stock; and
3. Transactions in puts, calls, or otierivative securities involving our stock.

Furthermore, employees and Directors are requirgaid-clear any hedging transactions.
Benchmarking of Our Compensation Program

In 2003, we hired Trinity Executive Recruiters,.Ino assist us in providing benchmarks for the rgatlmmponent of executi
compensation by similarly sized companies in simifalustries for persons that hold positions wharke currently fulfilled by variot
members of our executive team. These benchmafkasttsupport existing executive compensation.

The Role of Our Executives and Directors in Deterntiing Compensation

Management establishes the initial recommendati@uyarding compensation for all employees, includthgmselves. Ti
Compensation and Benefits Committee reviews exeegtimpensation changes and the process by wheadmntiployees are compensated.

Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement

We have an Employment Agreement with Mr. ThomaShhw which was modified effective January 1, 20®&void adverse ti
consequences to Mr. Shaw created by the passagieeoAmerican Jobs Creation Act of 2004. No otheecetives or Directors a
compensated pursuant to employment agreements.

Our Employment Agreement with Mr. Shaw (the “Emptant Agreement”provides for an initial period of three years whatdes
December 31, 2010 and automatically and continyogsiews for consecutive twaar periods. The Employment Agreement is ternma
either by us or Mr. Shaw upon 30 days’ written o@tbr upon Mr. Shaw’s death.

The Employment Agreement provides for an annualrgalf at least $416,400 with an annual salaryease equal to no less than
percentage increase in the CPI over the prior y@dre Employment Agreement requires that Mr. Sisasalary be reviewed by 1
Compensation and Benefits Committee annually, whiall make such increases as it considers apptepriMr. Shaw took a 10% salary
in August of 2009, along with all other executiviicers and other employees earning over a cedalary. In 2010, Mr. Shaw recei\
$41,682 to offset his salary reductions through ¥si@0, 2010. In 2013, the Compensation and Besn€bmmittee increased his salary
$7,623 over his 2012 salary.

Under the Employment Agreement, we are obligatquréeide certain benefits, including, but not liedtto, participation in qualifi
pension plan and profit-sharing plans, participatio the Companyg Cafeteria Plan and other such insurance berfitéided to othe
executives, paid vacation, and sick leave. Weadge obligated to furnish him with a cellular télepe and suitable office space as we
reimburse him for any reasonable and necessargfqudcket travel and entertainment expenses indusyehim in carrying out his duties ¢
responsibilities, membership dues to professiorgdmizations, and any business-related seminarsarfdrences.
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Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, we are digiigt indemnify Mr. Shaw for all legal expensesjnt costs, and all liabilitie
incurred in connection with any proceeding invotyinim by reason of his being an officer, employ@eagent of the Company. We
further obligated to pay reasonable attorney fewbs expenses and court and other costs associatbdhisi defense in the event that
Mr. Shaw’s sole judgment, he needs to retain cdwrsatherwise expend his personal funds for hiekee.

Upon his death, Mr. Shaw’estate shall be entitled to his salary throughddte of death, applicable benefits, and reimiouese o
expenses.

We have the right to terminate the Employment Agreet if Mr. Shaw incurs a permanent disability dgrithe term of h
employment. A permanent disability means that $fraw is unable to engage in any substantial gaadtivity by reason of any medice
determinable physical or mental impairment which ba expected to result in death or can be expéotkst for a continuous period of
less than 12 months or is, by reason of any mdgidaterminable physical or mental impairment whézim be expected to result in deat
can be expected to last for a continuous periawbbfess than 12 months, receiving income replao¢imenefits for a period of not less the
months under an accident and health plan covenngl®/ees of the Company. Mr. Shaw shall also bemdsl to be disabled if he
determined to be totally disabled by the SocialuGgc Administration. In such event, Mr. Shaw istided to his salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, and séary period of 24 months as well as applicableeffien

Mr. Shaw’s employment may be terminated for cause whicteimed to be conviction of a felony which is maadlyi detrimental t
the Company, proof, as determined finally by a tafrcompetent jurisdiction of the gross negligermewillful misconduct which i
materially detrimental to the Company, or proof,determined finally by a court of competent juriitin, of a breach of a fiduciary di
which is materially detrimental to the Company. dach event, he shall be entitled to his salarpufh the date of termination p
reimbursement of expenses.

If Mr. Shaw is terminated without cause and nohiatimplicit request, Mr. Shaw shall be entitledhis salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, his s&targ4 months, as well as applicable benefits.

If Mr. Shaw resigns (other than because of a changeontrol), he is entitled to his salary throutite date of terminatio
reimbursement of expenses, salary for 90 daysappticable benefits.

Mr. Shaw has the right under this agreement t@regi the event that there is a change in contfolChange of Control'shall be
deemed to have occurred on either of the follovdates: (i) the date any one person (other tharSkiaw), or more than one person actir
a group, acquires (or has acquired during thend2th period ending on the date of the most reaeqtisition by such person or perst
ownership of stock of the Company possessing 30%are of the total possible voting power of thecktof the Company (assuming
immediate conversion of all then outstanding cotibker preferred stock) or (ii) the date a majortymembers of the Board of Director:
replaced during any 1&wonth period by Directors whose appointment or tedacis not endorsed by a majority of the membershe
Companys Board of Directors before the date of the appogmit or election. Mr. Shaw further has the rightdsign if there is a change
ownership. A change in ownership is defined toehawcurred on the date that any one person (dtherMr. Shaw) or more than one pel
acting as a group acquires ownership of the Comigastpck that, together with the stock previouslighy such person or group, constitt
more than 50% of the total fair market value oaltatoting power (assuming the immediate conversiball then outstanding convertil
preferred stock) of the Company. In such event 3haw is entitled to salary through the date ofteation, salary for 24 montt
reimbursement of expenses, and applicable benefits.

Mr. Shaws commitment to the Company may not be construedregenting him from participating in other busises or fror
investing his personal assets as may require antasdr incidental time in the management, congemwaand protection of such investme
provided such investments or businesses cannairistroed as being competitive or in conflict witlke business of the Company.
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Mr. Shaw has agreed to a one-year nompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employewsohe year, and not make known
customers or accounts or to call on or solicit @crounts or customers in the event of terminatfomsemployment for one year unless
termination is without cause or pursuant to a ckasfgcontrol or ownership.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation and Benefits Committee has revdeavel discussed the COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANASIS
required by Item 402(b) of RegulationkSwith Management, and, based on the review anclid&ons referred to in paragraph (e)(5)(i)(#
Item 407 of Regulation & has recommended to the Board of Directors thatGOMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS |
included in this report on Form 10-K.

CLARENCE ZIERHUI1
WALTER O. BIGBY, JR
AMY MACK
SUMMARY OF TOTAL COMPENSATION

The following Summary Compensation Table sets ftrthtotal compensation paid or accrued by us theepast three fiscal years
or for the account of the principal executive dfficthe principal financial officer, and the thigghest paid additional executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2010-2012

All Other
Salary @ Bonus Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year ($) (%) (%) (%)
Thomas J. Sha 2010 427,854 — — 427,85¢
President and CE 2011 392,810 — — 392,81(
(principal executive officer 2012 406,714 — 220,00(@ 626,71
Michele M. Larios 2010 350,051 200,00 — 550,05:
Vice President 2011 315,281 — — 315,28:
General Counst 2012 315,000 — — 315,00(
Douglas W. Cowal 2010 290,406 35,00( — 325,40¢
Vice President, CF¢( 2011 261,051 — — 261,05:
(principal financial officer, 2012 261,000 — — 261,00(
principal accounting officel
Steven R. Wisne 2010 290,000 15,00( — 305,00(
Executive Vice Presider 2011 261,000 — — 261,00(
Engineering and Productic 2012 261,000 — — 261,00(
Russell B. Kuhimai 2010 139,992 5,00( — 144,99:
Vice President, Sale 2011 125,377 — — 125,37
2012 130,916 — — 130,91¢
(1) The following amounts included in tBalary column for 2010 represent nonrecurring paysimade to offset salary reductions

Thomas J. Shaw, $41,682; for Douglas W. Cowan,GREB.for Steven R. Wisner, $29,000; for MichelelMrios, $35,000; and for Russell
Kuhlman, $10,098.

(2) This amount is the result of Mr. Shavgain on exercising a portion of his nonqualifidck option for 2,000,000 shares
Common Stock. This gain had no effect on our foi@nstatements. The expense related tostbek options was recognized in previ
years.
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Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

Please se€ompensation Pursuant to Employment Agreemenabove and POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATIC
OR CHANGE IN CONTROL below for terms of our only playment agreement in effect.

For each Named Executive Officer, salary represg@9 of total compensation for 2012, with the gtiom of Mr. Shaws gair
from the exercise of his stock option, as descritsale.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following Outstanding Equity Awards at FiscaarEnd Table sets forth information regarding unexsadioptions held by t
principal executive officer, the principal finankaficer, and the three highest paid additiona@xive officers as of December 31, 2012.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2012 FISCAL YEAR END
Option Awards

Number of

Securities

Underlying Option

Unexercised Exercise Option
Options Price Expiration

Name Exercisable ($) Date

Thomas J. Sha 1,000,001 0.81 7-15-19
President, CE(

(principal executive officer

Michele M. Larios 97,05( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President 152,95( 0.81 7-15-19
General Counst

Douglas W. Cowal 102,00( 1.3C 11-1&-18
Vice President, CF¢( 98,00( 0.81 7-15-19
(principal financial officer, principal accounting

officer)

Steven R. Wisne 100,70( 1.3C 11-18-18
Executive Vice Presider 23,50( 0.81 7-15-19
Engineering and Productic

Russell B. Kuhimai 63,45( 1.3C 11-18-18
Vice President, Sale 25,00( 0.81 7-15-19

OPTION EXERCISES

The following table sets forth information concerithe exercise of stock options during the lastgleted fiscal year for each of -
named executive officers.
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OPTION EXERCISES

Option awards

Number of
shares acquired Value realized
Name on exercise on exercise
Thomas J. Sha 2,000,001 $220,00!

President, CE(
(principal executive officer

The closing market price on the date of exercisge $¢a92 and the exercise price was $0.81.
PENSION BENEFITS

We do not have a pension plan other than the 4@il#k) which is available to all employees the fobthe month after 90 days
service.

401(k) Plan

We implemented an employee savings and retiremiant @phe “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that is intendedlie a taxgualified plai
covering substantially all employees. Under thiengeof the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect tordmute up to 88% of their compensati
or the statutory prescribed limit, if less. We may our discretion, match employee contributioMge suspended matching contributi
beginning August 1, 2009 until further notice.

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CRTROL
The following table identifies the types and amauoit payments that shall be made to Thomas J. StawCEOQ, in the event of
termination of his employment or a change in cdrey his Employment Agreement. Such paymentd Sigaimade by us and shall be one-

time, lump sum payments except as indicated below.

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN C ONTROL
ASSUMING OCCURRENCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20121

Salary Amounts

Through Owed Payment
Trigger Under Undiscounted Salary Equal to
Event Benefit Reimbursement For a Period of 24 90 Days’ Value of
Payment Triggering Event Date Plans® of Expenses Months Salary Payments®)
Death X X X — — —
Disability X X X $813,427 — $813,427
Termination With Caus X — X — — —
Termination Without Caus X X X $813,427 — $813,427
Resignation (Other Than After a
Change in Control X X X — $101,678 $101,67¢
Resignation (After a Change in
Control) X X X $813,427 — $813,427
(1) The above payments would be paid uiie Shaws agreement at certain times. Any payments ariaing result of disability

resignation would be paid not sooner than six n®atid one day from the termination date
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but not later than seven months from the termimatiate. Any payments arising as a result of deathld be paid no later than the 90day
following the death. Payments arising as a resfulérmination with cause or termination withoutisa would be paid not later than the30
day following the date of termination except tlay amount due in excess of an amount equal tdetfmer of: i) two times annt
compensation or ii) two times the limit on compdimwaunder section 401(17) of the Internal Reve@oaee of 1986 such amount in exc
shall be paid no earlier than six months and onealfter the date of termination but in no evenedahan seven months after the dat
termination. Under Mr. Shaw’s agreement, Mr. Sheas agreed to a one-year nmmpete, not to hire or attempt to hire employeehe
year, and not make known our customers or accoante call on or solicit our accounts or customershe event of termination of |
employment for one year unless the terminationithout cause or pursuant to a change of contrawever, it is not clear that the ab:
payments are conditioned on the performance ofthestractual obligations.

(2) Mr. Shaw participates in our bengliains which do not discriminate in scope, termsoperation in favor of executive officel
Such plans are generally available to all salagatpbloyees. Accordingly, the value of such paymesitaot included in the Value o
Payments” column.

3 This value does not include paymamider our benefit plans for reasons set forth iotrfote 2 above. In addition, this va
assumes that the triggering event occurred on Deeef8i, 2012. Authorized payments under the Enméoy Agreement are also cappe
one dollar less than the amount that would causeSkaw to be the recipient of a parachute paymedéuSection 280G(b) of the Inter
Revenue Code.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table identifies the types and amauoit compensation earned by our current and fobmerctors (with the exceptic
of those that are named Executive Officers as destin footnote 1 to the table) in the last Fistaar:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2012

Fees Earnec

or Paid in
Cash Total
Name® ($) %)
Marco Laterz: $ 3,00C $ 3,00(
Amy Mack $ 3,00C $ 3,00(¢
Clarence Zierhu $ 3,00C $ 3,00(¢
Walter O. Bigby, Jr $ 1,50C $ 1,50(
Marwan Saker, Former Direct $ — $ —
(1) Thomas J. Shaw, Douglas W. Cowan,Steden Wisner are Named Executive Officers whaadge Directors. Their compensail

is reflected in the Summary Compensation and dHiges presented earlier.
Narrative Explanation of Director Compensation Tabk for 2012

In 2012 we paid each n@mployee Director a fee of $500 per meeting anchlvarsed travel expenses. We have granted tc
Director, except Walter O. Bigby, Jr., stock opidor Common Stock. We do not pay any additiomabants for committee participation
special assignment.

Marwan Saker resigned in February 2012. WaltdBigby, Jr. did not become a Director until July 201

Generally, employee Directors are compensated oat#nill basis as discussed in the COMPENSATION DISCU3$ AND
ANALYSIS. However, one employee, Mr. Thomas J.\8haur President and CEO, is compensated pursaant employment agreeme
Please see “Compensation Pursuant to Employmemefiggnt”, set forth above for an in depth summanphefterms of such agreement.
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eipgtion

The Compensation and Benefits Committee is cugr@mtinposed of Clarence Zierhut, Walter O. Bigby, @nd Amy Mack. Each
these members of this committee is an independeatdBmember and none have ever been employees Giofmpany.

There are no interlocking Directors or executivécefs between us and any other company. Accolgiimpne of our executi
officers or Directors served as a Director or exieeuofficer for another entity whose executiveicdfs or Directors served on our Boar:
Directors.

COMPENSATION POLICIES AND PRACTICES AS THEY RELATEO RISK MANAGEMENT

We do not believe that risiaking incentives are created by our compensat@itips. We do not have business units. We be
that our compensation expense is a reasonablenpageeof revenues overall. We have not set spgeéfiformance criteria for the awarc
bonuses. Salaries and bonuses, if any, are awaatt on skill, experience, and our overall reesnuNoneash awards to employees
made periodically in the form of stock options, efhiwe believe align the employeesterests with those of stockholders. We review
compensation policies and practices as they redatisk management objectives if compensation arsoare materially amended or if our |
profile changes. No changes to our compensatiticig® and practices have been implemented asu#t tfschanges to our risk profile.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattet
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth information relatit@gour equity compensation plans as of Decembgp@12:
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Number of securities

remaining available
for future issuance

Number of securities to Weighted average under equity
be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column(a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 3,437,08. $ 0.94 150,89.
Total 3,437,08 % 0.94 150,89:

The Compensation and Benefits Committee author{aed the shareholders approved) a grant of an roftio the purchase
3,000,000 shares of Common Stock to our CEO, Tham&bhaw. The option is exercisable at a pric0oB1 per share, the market price
the date of grant. The option will terminate inl90 Mr. Shaw exercised a portion of the option2¢000,000 shares of Common Stoc
2012.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
The following table sets forth certain informati@yarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 1, 2013, for e
person known by us to own beneficially 5% or madfréhe voting capital stock. Except pursuant tolegjple community property laws, e:

shareholder identified in the table possessesvatieg and investment power with respect to hikarshares, except as noted below.
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Amount and
Nature of
Name and Address o Beneficial Percent of

Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class @
Common Stocl

Thomas J. Sha{® 14,665,64 51.92%

511 Lobo Lane

P.O. Box 9

Little Elm, TX 7506¢-0009

Suzanne M. Augug?d 3,800,00! 13.95%

5793 Lois Lane

Plano, TX 7502«

Lillian E. Salernd® 1,806,00! 6.62%

777 7th Avenue 430

Washington DC 2000

Lloyd I. Miller, Il ® 1,668,33 6.12%

222 Lakeview Avenue

Suite 160-365

West Palm Beach, FL 334(

Katie Petroleum, Inc. 1,402,98 5.15%

17341 Remington Park Cir.

Dallas, TX 7525:
(1) The Percent of Class is calculatedtie Common Stock class by dividing each bendfmianer's Amount of Beneficial Ownersh

as shown in the table above, by the sum of thd tmitstanding Common Stock (27,248,209 shares) thas beneficial ownes' stocl
equivalents (options), if any.

(2 1,000,000 of the shares identifiedCasnmon Stock are shares acquirable through thecisgeof a stock option. 2,800,000 of
shares are owned by Ms. Suzanne August (see feo®)diut are controlled by Mr. Shaw pursuant tocding Agreement. These shares
permanently controlled by Mr. Shaw until such tiae they are sold by Ms. August. These sharesnateded in the share amounts
percentages for both Mr. Shaw and Ms. August inaih@ve table. Mr. Shaw has investment power oy@Q000 shares of Common St
as Trustee pursuant to trust agreements for thefibesf family members. Ms. August has voting aohtover such 1,000,000 shares
Special Trustee (see footnote 3). These sharemeeled in the share amounts and percentagelsofitr Mr. Shaw and Ms. August in
above table.

) Ms. Auguss$ 2,800,000 shares are controlled by Mr. Thom&hadw pursuant to a Voting Agreement. These staeescluded i
the share amounts and percentages for both Mr. @hdviMs. August in the above table. Ms. Augustimimg control over 1,000,000 sha
of Common Stock as Special Trustee pursuant t¢ smieements for the benefit of family members.. Straw has investment power c
such 1,000,000 shares as Trustee. These shargxladed in the share amounts and percentagédsotbr Mr. Shaw and Ms. August in
above table.

4 25,000 shares identified as CommariSare shares which are obtainable by the exeofigestock option.

(5) The number of shares held by thispemwas obtained from a Schedule 13G/A filed orrlraaty 14, 2013. Pursuant to the Sche
13G/A, Lloyd I. Miller, Ill has sole voting and gissitive power for all reported shares.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth certain informati@yarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 1, 2013, for e
Named Executive Officer specified by Item 402 ofgRlation K (i.e., our CEO, CFO, and three other highest pafiters) and eac
Director of the Company. Except pursuant to ajblie community property laws or as otherwise diseddelow, each shareholder identi
in the table possesses sole voting and investnmmempwith respect to his or her shares.

Amount and
Nature of Percent
Name of Beneficial of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class®
Common Stocl
As a Groug Named Executive Officers and Directt 15,516,87 55.0%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha® 14,665,64 51.92%
Clarence Zierhu® 62,50( <1%
Douglas W. Cowal® 200,00( <1%
Steven R. Wisne® 129,45( <1%
Russell B. Kuhlmai® 89,45( <1%
Michele M. Larios(® 261,00( <1%
Marco Laterzé® 60,00( <1%
Amy Mack® 43,82¢ <1%
Walter O. Bigby, Jr 5,00( <1%
Q) The Percent of Class is calculatedtfe individuals holding Common Stock by dividiegch beneficial ownes’ Amount o

Beneficial Ownership, as shown in the table abbyethe sum of the total outstanding Common Sto@k228,209 shares) plus that benef
owner’s stock equivalents (options), if any. Therdent of Class is calculated for the “As a Group¥ by totaling all of the Percent
Class percentages appearing in the chart.

(2) 1,000,000 of these shares are adgjeitthrough the exercise of a stock option. 2,800,06f the shares are owned by Ms. Suz
August but are controlled by Mr. Shaw pursuant Woéing Agreement. These shares are permanentiyyated by Mr. Shaw until such tir
as they are sold by Ms. August. These sharesaheded in calculating Mr. Shag/percentages in the above table. Mr. Shaw hastimes
power over 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock as@leysursuant to trust agreements for the benefirofly members. These shares
included in calculating Mr. Shaw’s percentageshim above table.

) These shares are acquirable by theciese of stock options.

(4) These shares are acquirable by thecese of stock options.

(5) 124,200 of these shares are acqaitapthe exercise of stock options.

(6) 88,450 of these shares are acquitaptbe exercise of stock options.

@) 250,000 of these shares are acqeapkhe exercise of stock options. 1,000 of tietsaes are owned by Ms. Larios’ children.
(8) 50,000 of these shares are acquitaptbe exercise of stock options.

(9) These shares are acquirable by thecese of stock options.
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There are no arrangements, the operation of whaldwesult in a change in control of the Compatkier than:
1. Ms. August’s shares shall cease to be contrélebllr. Shaw under their Voting Agreement uponttisaie to a third party; and
2. Mr. Shaw was granted an option for the purcloé$:000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which 1,@00 shares of Common
Stock remain eligible for purchase upon exercige. Shaw is able to control 51.92% of the currewtlystanding shares of the
Common Stock and would control 46.30% of the Comi@tmtk assuming the exercise of all outstandingoptand conversion of
all outstanding preferred shares.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Related Party Transactions

We believe that all of the transactions set foetoly were made on terms no less favorable to usc¢bald have been obtained fr
unaffiliated third parties. In accordance with édwrdit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee hegiewed and approved all related p
transactions. In particular, the Audit Committee reviews all posed transactions where the amount involved meeatsceeds $120,000.

In 1995, Thomas J. Shaw, President, Chief Execu@iffecer, and shareholder holding more than 5%hef dutstanding Comm
Stock, was paid a licensing fee of $500,000 (arpedtiover 17 years) by us for the exclusive worléwiidensing rights to manufactu
market, sell, and distribute retractable medicédtyagproducts. A royalty of 5% of gross sales Ibfieensed products sold to customers ¢
the life of the Technology Licensing Agreement &dp Of this royalty, Ms. Suzanne August, the ferrspouse of Mr. Shaw, is entitlec
$100,000 per quarter. Mr. Shaw receives the redeaiof this royalty. A royalty of $2,185,019 an8,%70,588 was paid to Thomas J. S
in 2012 and 2011, respectively. Ms. August rea@i$800,000 in 2012 and $400,000 in 2011.

Thomas J. Shaw exchanged his Preferred Stock sftar€®@mmon Stock and cash in the fourth quarte20dfl pursuant to the 2C
Exchange Offer on the same terms as were offeredl tereferred Stockholders. Mr. Shaw received88,shares of Common Stock .
$95,843 in exchange for 5,000 shares of SeriesrBfeRed Stock and 81,607 shares of Series V Resfe8tock, and he waived a tota
$58,110 in unpaid dividends in arrears. Our Comi@tmtk had a closing stock price of $1.39 at Noverndl) 2011, the expiration date of
2011 Exchange Offer.

On July 10, 2012, Mr. Shaw exercised a portionisfstock option. The Company issued 2,000,000eshai Common Stock to h
at an exercise price of $0.81 (aggregate consideraf $1,620,000).

Director Independence

The Board of Directors has the responsibility fetablishing corporate policies and for our ovepaliformance, although it is r
involved in day-today operations. Currently, a majority (four of ey of the Directors serving on our Board of Diogstare independe
Directors as defined in Section 121(A) of the tigtistandards of the NYSE MKT. Our current indegemdirectors are Clarence Ziert
Marco Laterza, Amy Mack, and Walter O. Bigby, Brach of our committees is constituted solely byepehdent Directors.

The Board of Directors, in reviewing the indepenttenf its members, further considered the factweapaid Ms. Maclks compan
$20,350 in 2010 for conducting clinical trials. erBoard of Directors determined that her indepeocdemas not compromised by s
transaction.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit ofanmual financial statements
2012 and 2011 and the reviews of the financiakstants included in our Forms T-or services normally provided by the accounta
connection with statutory and regulatory filings foose fiscal years were $180,000 and $195,2&pewtively.
AUDIT RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foofpssional services rendered for the audit of4ffr(k) plan for 2012 and 20
were $12,500 and $13,765, respectively.

TAX FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co., L.L.P. foegaration of federal and state income tax retanstax consulting costs rela
to notices from taxing authorities for 2012 and 2@dere $77,062 and $65,065, respectively.

PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The engagement of CF & Co., L.L.P. was entered mrsuant to the approval policies and procedufefe Audit Committee
Before CF & Co., L.L.P. was engaged to render ses/the engagement was approved by the Audit CaeenifThe engagement is for a
and tax services which were detailed separatelye Audit Committee implemented its approval procedui.e., they were not delegate
any other party. All of the services provided wpre-approved by the Audit Committee.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(& (1) Allfinancial statements: See Retractable Techriemdnc. Index to Financial Statements on Pe-2.

(2) Those financial statement schedules required tildgkby Item 8 of this form, and by paragraph lfeJow. Schedule IEchedul
of Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the yearsddled December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2

Balance at
beginning Balance at
of period Additions Deductions end of period
Provision for Inventorie
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 205,60( $ — 3 — 3 205,60(
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 205,60( $ 52,83t $ — 3 258,43!
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 258,43 $ 120,00 $ 138,68: $ 239,75:
Provision for Accounts Receivabl
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 681,96t $ 98,93: $ — 3 780,90(
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 780,90 $ 1,298,04. $ — 3 2,078,94.
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 2,078,94. $ 107,24t $ — $ 2,186,191
Deferred Tax Valuatio
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 6,647,20. $ — 3 1,204,52; $ 5,442,68.
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Balance at

beginning Balance at

of period Additions Deductions end of period
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 5,442,68. $ — 3 559,26t $ 4,883,411
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 4,883,411 $ 1,155,631 $ — 3 6,039,05.

Provision for Rebate (A) (B) ©

Fiscal year ended 20: $ 6,056,97. $ 16,862,73 $ 11,817,38 $ 11,102,32
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 11,102,32 $ 19,229,30 $ 14,172,84 $ 16,158,79
Fiscal year ended 20: $ 16,158,79 $ 19,615,38 $ 13,780,91 $ 21,993,26

(A) Represents estimated rebates deducted from gnoessues
(B) Represents rebates credited to the distrit

© Includes $3,036,564; $2,170,764; and $1,186,9%Ytounts payable for 2012, 2011, and 2010, resgagtiThe remainder includ
a contri-account for credits taken by the distributor foriehha credit memorandum has not been issued bgdingpany.

(3)  Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated herein by reference to exhibits previouddfwith the SEC

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit Description of Document

No.

3() Restated Certificate of Formation with CertificatdDesignation, Preferences, Rights and LimitatiohClass B Preferred
Stock (all Series)

3(ii) Fourth Amended and Restated Bylaws of RT

4 Restated Certificate of Formation with CertificatdDesignation, Preferences, Rights and LimitatiohClass B Preferred
Stock (all Series)

10.1 Sample United States Distribution Agreement

10.2 Sample Foreign Distribution Agreement*

10.3 Employment Agreement between RTI and Thomas J. Slsé@d as of January 1, 2008 (This is a managecoampensation
contract.) ****

10.4 Technology License Agreement between Thomas J. 8haviRTI dated the Z¢ day of June 1995**

10.5 First Amendment to Technology License Agreemenivbeh Thomas J. Shaw and RTI dated the 3rd daylypf2008 *****

10.6 Second Amendment to Technology License Agreememtdsn Thomas J. Shaw and Retractable Technoldgiegjated as of
the 7th day of September, 201

10.7 Loan Agreement among RTI, Katie Petroleum and Trod&haw as of the 30  day of September, 200Pendissory
Notett

10.8 RTI's 1999 Stock Option Plan**

10.9 First Amendment to 1999 Stock Option Plan’
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Exhibit Description of Document

T(())..lo Retractable Technologies, Inc. 2008 Stock Opti@nPft1

10.11 Thomas J. Shaw Nonqualified Stock Option Agreeni&sued Outside of Any Ple

10.12 Voting Agreement Between Thomas J. Shaw and Suzangest dated November 8, 2000

14 Retractable Technologies, Inc. Code of BusinessdGctrand Ethiciooo

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriingoooo

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officeooo

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officeocoo

32 Section 1350 Certificatioreooo

101 The following materials from this report, formatt@dXBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Languag@)Balance Sheets as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, (ii) the Statemeih@perations for the years ended December 31,, 20071, and 2010,
(iii) the Statements of Changes in Stockholdersligofor the years ended December 31, 2012, 20812840, (iv) the
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended DemeBih 2012, 2011, and 2010, and (v) Notes to EiahStatementwooo

* Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-Q filed on November 15, 201

** Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form K filed on May 13, 201(

kk Incorporated herein by reference to 's Registration Statement on Forn-SB filed on June 23, 20(

Fhkx Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 20(

ok Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-K filed on March 31, 200

t Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 201

tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form K filed on October 10, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-KSB filed on March 31, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's definitive Schedule 14A filed on August 19, 2(

0o
00O

0000

(©)

Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-K filed on March 31, 201!
Incorporated herein by reference to 's Schedule TO filed on October 17, 2(
Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form K filed on February 19, 201
Filed herewitt

Excluded Financial Statement Schedules: N
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetin duly authorized.

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC
(Registrant

By: /s/ Thomas J. Shaw
THOMAS J. SHAW
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

Date: April 1, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

/s/ Steven R. Wisner

Steven R. Wisne

Executive Vice President, Engineering
Production and Directc

April 1, 2013

[s/ Douglas W. Cowan

Douglas W. Cowal

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Princigaicounting
Officer, Treasurer, and Direct

April 1, 2013

s/ Clarence Zierhut
Clarence Zierhu
Director

April 1, 2013

/sl Amy Mack
Amy Mack
Director

April 1, 2013

/s/ Marco Laterza
Marco Laterzz
Director

April 1, 2013

/s/ Walter O. Bigby, Jr.
Walter O. Bigby, Jr
Director

April 1, 2013
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Exhibit 22
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRlegistration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-15587d 333-1300419f Retractabl
Technologies, Inc. of our report dated April 1, 20#lating to our audit of the financial statemeantsl financial statement schedule, w!
appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Raahle Technologies, Inc. for the year ended Decer@bg2012.

[s/ICE & Co., L.L.P.
CF & Co,, L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
April 1, 2013




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Thomas J. Shaw, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmistate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ni#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeants, other financial information included in thisport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operat, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdst@nd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportiras [defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our supervit
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearicial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegatte reliability of financial reporting and thpreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registramfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affected, or is reasondikely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internakrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’'s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden!
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal contnggr financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize, and refaisancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavwmanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registragt’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date:  April 1, 2013

/s/ Thomas J. Shaw

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF




Exhibit 31.Z
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Douglas W. Cowan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorgny untrue statement of a material fact or dmistate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, ni#adisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeants, other financial information included in thisport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operat, and cash flows of the registrant as of, amdthe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdst@nd procedures {
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportiras [defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdo be designed under our supervit
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearicial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance riegatte reliability of financial reporting and thpreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registramfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabr® that has materially affected, or is reasondikely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internakrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’'s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden!
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal contnggr financial reporting which ¢
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize, and refaisancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavwmanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registragt’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date:  April 1, 2013

/s/ Douglas W. Cowan

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICEF




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Solely in connection with the filing of the AnnuRleport of Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Camyg) on Form 1K for the perio
ended December 31, 2012, as filed with the UniteteS Securities and Exchange Commission on the ltateof (the “Report”)the
undersigned Thomas J. Shaw, Chief Executive Offiaad Douglas W. Cowan, Chief Financial Officer, ltereby certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExafeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faiggesents, in all material respects, the finanataldition and results of operations of
Company.

Date: April 1, 2013

/s/ Thomas J. Shaw

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

/sl Douglas W. Cowan

DOUGLAS W. COWAN

VICE PRESIDENT, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, AND
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING OFFICEF




